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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 20:

(Mark One)
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or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission file number 0-26946

INTEVAC, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cagrt
Delaware 94-3125814
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification Nc
3560 Bassett Street
Santa Clara, California 95054

(Address of principal executive office, includirig Zode)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(408) 986-9888
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) afie Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock ($0.001 par valt The Nasdag Stock Market LLC (NASDAQ Global Sele
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢e Act:
None.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a viklbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edbéturities Act. 1 Yes M
No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. [0  Yes
M No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans vemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementstfe past 90 days. ¥ Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&eb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of ttiapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regigtwas required to submit and post such filesd Yes O No

Indicate by a check mark if disclosure of delingufdars pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-KE@205 of this chapter) is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, toltbst of registrant's knowledge, in definitive prax information statements incorporated by
reference in Part IIl of this Form 10-K or any ameent to this Form 10-K. M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See definitions of “large acaked filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reping company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer (I Accelerated filer M Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company I
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 ofthe Actd Yes ™M No

As of July 2, 2011, the aggregate market valueoting and non-voting stock held by non-affiliatégtee Registrant, was approximately
$131,340,038 (based on the closing price for shafrd®e Registrant's Common Stock as reported byNhsdaq Stock Market for the last
trading day prior to that date). Shares of CommimeiSheld by each executive officer, director, &tter of 5% or more of the outstanding
Common Stock have been excluded in that such persay be deemed to be affiliates. This determinadfaaffiliate status is not necessarily
a conclusive determination for other purposes.

On February 21, 2012, 23,256,984 shares of thesRagt's Common Stock, $0.001 par value, were anting.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE.

Portions of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement fer2812 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorfgatdy reference into Part IIl.
Such proxy statement will be filed within 120 dafter the end of the fiscal year covered by thisdal Report on Form 10-K.




CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT S

Certain information in this Annual Report on ForBH (report or Form 10-K) of Intevac, Inc. and $ishsidiaries (“Intevac” or the
“Company”), including “Management’s Discussion akthlysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gytems” in Item 7, is forward-
looking in nature. All statements in this repongluding those made by the management of Intexthey than statements of historical fact,
forward-looking statements. Examples of forwardkiog statements include statements regarding lotevature financial results, operating
results, cash flows and cash deployment stratelgiesiness strategies, costs, products, workingalapompetitive positions, management’s
plans and objectives for future operations, reseand development, acquisitions and joint ventugesyth opportunities, customer contracts,
investments, liquidity, declaration of dividendaddegal proceedings, as well as market conditiamtsindustry trends. These forwdabking
statements are based on management’s estimatgs;timas and assumptions as of the date herecinghdie the assumptions that underlie
such statements. Forward-looking statements mataitowords such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “coulti;;'would,” “expect,” “plan,”
“anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “pential” and “continue,” the negative of these termr other comparable terminology. Any
expectations based on these forward-looking stattvare subject to risks and uncertainties and atygortant factors, including those
discussed in Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” below andeelkere in this report. Other risks and uncertasntigy be disclosed in Intevac’s prior
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) filinglsese and many other factors could affect IntesvAgure financial condition and
operating results and could cause actual resultifer materially from expectations based on famvbboking statements made in this report
or elsewhere by Intevac or on its behalf. Intevadartakes no obligation to revise or update amydiod-looking statements.

The following information should be read in conjtion with the Consolidated Financial Statements thiedaccompanying Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included inrirt.

PART |

Item 1. Business
Overview
Intevac’s business consists of two reportable se¢gne
Equipment: Intevac is a leader in the design, developraadtmarketing of high-productivity process manufaog equipment
solutions to the hard disk drive industry. Intewdsn offers high-productivity process manufacturogiipment and inspection solutions
for the solar photovoltaic (“PV”) industry.
Intevac Photonics: Intevac is a leader in the development and fizatwre of leading edge, higiensitivity imaging products a

vision systems, as well as table-top and handhatdd® instruments. Markets addressed include nyiJitadustrial, medical and
scientific.

Intevac was incorporated in October 1990 in Catiil@and completed a leveraged buyout of a numbdividions of Varian Associates
in February 1991. Intevac was reincorporated ira@ake in 2007.

Equipment Segment
Hard Disk Drive Equipment Market

Intevac designs, manufactures, markets and seretraplex capital equipment used to deposit thindibnto substrates to produce
magnetic disks that are used in hard disk drived,adso equipment to lubricate these disks. Digkdisk drive manufacturers produce
magnetic disks in a sophisticated manufacturingges involving many steps, including plating, atingapolishing, texturing, sputtering,
etching, stripping and lubrication. Intevac belie¥s systems represent approximately 60% of thilied capacity of disk sputtering systems
worldwide. Intevacs systems are used by manufacturers of magnetimraecdh as Seagate Technology, Hitachi Global §eofi@chnologie:
Fuji Electric, Showa Denko and Western Digital.



Hard disk drives are a primary storage medium fgital data and are used in products and applicatsuch as personal computers,
enterprise data storage including on-line, clowdagfe and near-line application, personal digiid¢® players and video game platforms.
Intevac believes that hard disk drive media shipmneiill continue to grow over time, driven by grdwih digital storage, by the proliferation
of personal computers into emerging economies, gy and emerging applications, and by the slowingreél density improvements.
Continued growth in hard disk drive shipments keg factor in determining the demand for magneskslused in hard disk drives.

Demand for Intevac’s disk manufacturing productdrigen by a number of factors, including unit dewidor hard disk drives, market
share, the average number of magnetic disks usealcim hard drive, areal density improvements zatilon and productivity of disk
manufacturersinstalled base of magnetic disk manufacturing emeipt and obsolescence of the installed base asith of new technologie

Intevac expects that hard disk drive manufactusgiisextend their utilization of planar perpendiauimedia for the next several years
with the introduction of thermal assisted magnegimording (“TAMR?”) followed by the introduction gfatterned media, the next major media
technology for the hard drive industry. Intevacidéets that the transition to TAMR will require distlanufacturers to upgrade their installed
base of equipment, which would result in increadeaand for equipment technology upgrades to b@peed by Intevac. The transition to
patterned media by disk manufacturers, which intoed new processes and requires new equipmentesilt in increased demand for
Intevac’s equipment. Intevac expects the transtibopatterned media to occur following the impletagion of TAMR and Intevac introduced
the 200 Lean Gen Il etch and deposition systen®@92vhich is being used by the industry for patdrmedia application development.

Approximately one-third of the world’s hard diskwdrs are manufactured in Thailand. In October df28everal regions of Thailand
experienced severe flooding, causing damage tastrfrcture, housing and factories. Disk drive mactufrers’ factory production and supply
chains have been disrupted and component productisteen affected. Western Digital is estimatduktaffected the most by the flooding
Thailand with sixty percent of its production temadly shut down. Seagate Technology reportedhbad disk drive supplies will be
significantly constrained for several quarters potentially through the remainder of 2012 until upply chain recovers to the pre-flood
level. Until component availability recovers to theame level prior to the flooding, there may notalieeed for Intevac’s customers to add
additional media production capacity. Based onviatés current assessment of the situation, it befighat once these constraints are lifted,
Intevac’s customers will need new equipment toease media capacity and will result in increasedadtel for Intevac’s equipment.
However, because the situation in Thailand is stillving uncertainty remains regarding the ultienapact of this event on the Company.

Hard Disk Drive Equipment Products

Disk Sputtering Systems

Disk sputtering is the process of depositing a fifim of various materials on a substrate. Integgaipment deposits magnetic films,
non-magnetic films and protective carbon-basedanais on disks that are to be used in hard diskesltising sputtering or chemical vapor
deposition (“CVD") technologies.

Intevacs 200 Lean systems began shipping in 2003, anfirt@00 Lean Gen |l systems shipped in 2008, withinstalled base of 2(
Lean systems reaching more than 155 systems tgnthef 2011. Intevac estimates that approximat@dp @f the installed base is used in
production with the balance used for research aveldpment.

In 2009, Intevac shipped the first 200 Lean Gegtdh and deposition system to be used for pattemreztia. Intevac provides a cost-
effective solution for high-volume manufacturing fpviding new etch and associated process moduldéise high-productivity 200 Lean
Gen 1l platform.

Disk Lubrication Systems

Disk lubrication is the manufacturing step thatdals deposition of thin films. During lubricatioa,microscopic layer of lubricant is
applied to the disk’s surface to improve durabitityd reduce surface friction between the disk hedead/write head assembly.
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The Intevac AccuLubem™ lubricates disks by depogitirthin film of lubricant on the disk while it ismder vacuum thus eliminating the
use of solvents, which are environmentally hazasdmd expensive to procure, store and dispose.

Non-Systems Business

Intevac also provides technology upgrades, spats pad consumables, installation, maintenance epalr services to Intevacsysten
customers. Non-system business as a percentagpiqfrient revenues was 51% in 2009, 27% in 201058046 in 2011.

Solar Market

Intevac designs, manufactures and markets capjtéppment for the photovoltaic (“PV”) solar manufachg industry. Today, fossil
fuels are used to generate most of the world'siéddy supply. Volatile prices, increasing demaadijng generation plants and transmission
infrastructure, regulatory impediments, growingiemwmental concerns, ongoing reliance on foreigergy sources and the desire for energy
security are all driving the growing global demdodrenewable energy sources such as PV solarieigct

The cost of electricity generated from PV solarrgpés higher than that of electricity generateahirtraditional energy sources in some
markets. To offset the higher costs associated saitér energy and to encourage the adoption ahaltiee energy supplies, some
governments around the world implemented variox€tadits and other financial incentives. Althouymiblic support for solar subsidies
appears to remain positive, significant growthafasinstallations has caused some governments¢ylarly in major European countries, to
balance or reduce the cost of solar subsidiesveltd other government expenditures. At the same the cost of solar generated electricity
has decreased substantially thus offsetting thactexhs in solar subsidies. Over the next few ysatar is now being forecasted to approach
the cost of some traditional energy sources. Tiiimoed focus in the PV market is on the developmoéhigh-efficient cell technologies
aimed at simultaneously boosting output efficieratgs and reducing production costs. New vacuurogstechnologies and integrated
processing steps are becoming increasingly impbaseompanies search for lower cost manufactsahgtions.

A solar cell (also called photovoltaic or PV cédl)a solid state device that converts the energunplfight directly into electricity.
Assemblies of cells are used to make solar modalss,known as solar panels. Solar panels haveldvased end market applications for
solar farms, integrated building PV arrays, rooftpjols and portable devices.

Currently, there are two prevailing processes fanuiacturing PV material: wafer-based crystallitiean (“c-Si”) solar and thin film
solar cell manufacturing processes. More than 86%6lar cells produced are made using c-Si wafé film coating, the other prevailing
manufacturing method, involves applying a deposipoocess and thin-film coating process onto gleigaetal substrates.

Solar Manufacturing Products

Solar Cell Processing System

Intevac offers vacuum process manufacturing satstior c-Si and Copper indium gallium (di)selen{tf@IGS”) thin film applications.
Intevac’s platform, LEAN SOLAR™, was leveraged fromtevac’s leading hard disk drive system desigthiara high-productivity process
equipment solution enabling low-cost solar cell ofaoturing and high cell efficiency for both c-Siar and CIGS (thin film).

In 2009 Intevac began offering processing equipr@fV cell manufacturers for CIGS thin film apjalions and in 2010 began
offering processing equipment for wafer-based egffilications. To date, Intevac has shipped two LEXDLAR deposition systems.

Intevac is in various stages of development foeehracuum process technology modules for the LEANAR platform for etching,
doping by ion implant and deposition applicatiofisese include LEAN SOLAR NanoTexture™, ENERGI™ ioplant, and integrated
physical vapor deposition (“PVD”") modules. Intev@ENERGi ion implantation module is based uponnetigy developed by Solar Imple
Technologies, Inc. (“SIT”) which was acquired byeawac in November 2010.
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LEAN SOLAR NanoTexture™

Texturing is a method used in solar cell procesamg means of lowering surface reflectance anéftve capturing more light or
photons resulting in higher overall solar cell @ficies. Typically texturing is carried out witletxchemicals such as acids that produce a
rough textured surface on the solar cell. The LEBOLAR NanoTexture™ is a dry etch processing systerhenables much smaller nano
sized texture features in the solar cell that enfdWer reflectance and therefore higher cell &fficy. The LEAN SOLAR NanoTexture can
be integrated into a “standard” solar processing b enable higher cell efficiencies and lowet pes watt. The additional benefit of the
NanoTexture process is the cell appearance is elolingm a no-uniform grainy blue color to a more desirable anif black color which
will capture more light.

LEAN SOLAR ENERGI™

lon implantation is a technique being introduceddtar cell lines to replace older diffusion praessas a means to increase overall cell
efficiency and lower cost per watt. lon implantatienables new advanced cell structures with fewmrgssing steps and therefore at lower
cost. The ion implant process developed with Ints/aEAN SOLAR ENERGI™ product enables precisiomi@eering of the dopant
elements such as phosphorous and boron to forentiitéer in the solar cell. The LEAN SOLAR ENERGhiomplanter is being designed to
run at high throughput, results in lower cost ohewship in manufacturing and can be integratedantstandard” solar processing line.

LEAN SOLAR PVD

PVD is a process used in multiple steps in the faanturing of solar cells such as for electrical te@ts, conductor layers, reflective
layers, transparent conductive oxides and thin &ibaorber layers all of which are critical to tlfificeency of solar cells. The LEAN SOLAR
PVD system is versatile in that it can deposibathese layers for a variety of c-Si PVD applioas. The LEAN SOLAR PVD is being
designed to run at high throughput and with higigegautilization designed to result in lower cosbanership for solar manufacturers.

Inspection System

Intevac’s NanoVista™ Photoluminescence Inspectistedn is used in photovoltaic cell inspection. Witgh throughput material
handling capability and a proprietary, high seugitj high resolution camera, NanoVista capturdarscell images in milliseconds with
greater accuracy than other imaging systems.

To date Intevac has not recognized significantmeedrom its PV products.

Semiconductor Equipment Market

Prior to January 2012, Intevac designed, manufadtand marketed vacuum wafendling automation equipment to the semicondt
manufacturing industry. In 2010 Intevac introdueeligh-productivity vacuum wafer handling systemtfarm which offered customers a
cost-effective, flexible alternative to the currehtster platform designs. In 2011 Intevac recogtizvenue on the first three wafer handling
systems. In January 2012, Intevac divested thecagrductor mainframe technology and sold certairtassomprising its semiconductor
mainframe technology to Brooks Automation, Inc.

Intevac Photonics Segment
Intevac Photonics Market

Intevac Photonics develops, manufactures and aaftgact, cost-effective, high-sensitivity digitadtwal products for the capture and
display of low-light images and materials identifion. These products incorporate high resolutigital image sensors operating in the
visible and near infrared (“NIR") light spectrumsdaare based on Intevac’s proprietary EBAPS (EdecBombarded Active Pixel Sensor)
technology.

Intevac Photonics products primarily address tigh performance military night-vision market. Keypéipations are focused on the
detection and identification of targets in extreynlew-light level conditions. Intevac provides tegsroducts for military aircraft, ground
vehicles, ground soldier head-mounted and weapon-



mounted applications. In additional to military higvision products, Intevac also develops and nmeatufes Raman spectrometer systems for
the detection and identification of materials ie themical, biological and explosives threat daiagt'CBNRE"), pharmaceutical, plastics
and law enforcement industries.

Military Products

Intevac’'s EBAPS sensors are incorporated into cagtesigned products for high performance militgvglecations. Intevac’'s EBAPS
sensors can be integrated at various levels witleelectronics, software, and displays basedh wostomer specifications and requireme
Customization typically occurs in the areas of gtatcs, near-eye micro-displays, and mechanicekaging. Product configurations include
sensors, cameras, and complete systems. Intevadagis by application are:

Rifle Sight
Intevac offers low-light 1.3 and 2.0 mega-pixel BB&modules that are integrated by our customeavsaimieapon sight attached to
weaponry including rifles for night time aiming atatgeting.
Helicopter Pilotage

Intevac offers a night-vision camera with a 2.0 expixel resolution EBAPS module which is gimbal-unted on the helicopter. The
low-light level digital video is then viewable blye helicopter pilot on a head mounted display eéngtihe pilot to fly at night time and in
adverse conditions.

Fixed Wing Aircraft Pilotage

Intevac offers night-vision cameras with 1.3 ar@lrdega-pixel resolutions which are embedded irftgtaer pilot’'s helmet and enables
the pilot to fly at night time and in adverse cdiudis.

Long-Range Target Identification

Intevac offers the Laser llluminated Viewing andhBimg (“LIVAR ©”) shortwave-infrared (“SWIR”), camarfor long range military
nighttime surveillance systems that can identifgéss at distances of up to twenty kilometers.MatePhotonics’ LIVAR camera is
incorporated into long range target identificateystems manufactured by major defense contractors.

Soldier Mobility

The U.S. Army is sponsoring the Digital EnhancedhtlVision Goggle (“ENVG-D") program. This nightsibn goggle will integrate a
low-light visible sensor with a thermal infrarechser. The head-mounted digital imaging system alitiw low-light level and thermal
imagery to be viewed individually, or to be ovedlgidigitally fused”), and enable connectivity tamdreless network for distribution of the
imagery and other information.

Simulation and Training

Near-eye display systems are high-performance ordigplay products for near-eye, portable viewifigideo in military and
commercial markets. Intevac’s eyeglass and helnwetrted display systems provide high definition andide field-of-view in miniaturized
light-weight and portable designs. Intevac’s I-P#@rhelmet-mounted display provides solutions for sdislerse markets as medical,
industrial, commercial and military, including tn&ng and simulation.

Commercial Products

Raman Materials Identification Instruments

Products include Raman spectrometer table-top andteld systems that perform non-destructive iieation of solid materials,
powders and liquids by illuminating the sample véattaser and measuring the characteristic speatflight scattered from the tested sam
Raman spectroscopy can be used in forensics, hotheurity, geology, gemology, medical, pharmacaband industrial quality assurance
applications.



Intevac has developed a series of handheld Ranstminents that incorporate Intevac’s core NIR semtoenable the detection and
identification of critical materials in the CBNRBharmaceutical, plastics and law enforcement imhsst

Low-Light Cameras

Intevac Photonics’ MicroVist&@ product line of commmial low-light Complementary Metal-Oxide—Semiconthr (“CMOS”) cameras
provides high sensitivity in the ultraviolet, vigor NIR regions of the spectrum. MicroVista's quent and lightweight camera design can be
used in industrial inspection, bio-medical and sstific applications. These cameras are primarilg sbrough distribution channels and to
original equipment manufacturers.

Backlog

Intevac’s backlog of orders at December 31, 2014 $&2.9 million, as compared to $46.7 million atBmber 31, 2010. Backlog at
December 31, 2011 consisted of $17.9 million ofigment backlog and $15.0 million of Intevac Photsrthacklog. Backlog at December
2010 consisted of $27.3 million of Equipment bagkémd $19.4 million of Intevac Photonics backlogeTecrease in Equipment backlog
was primarily the result of decreased orders f@& R€an disk sputtering systems. Backlog at Decer@be2011 included one LEAN SOLAR
system, as compared to two 200 Lean systems antdBAdl SOLAR systems in backlog at December 31, 2@dxklog includes only
customer orders with scheduled delivery dates.

Customer Concentration

Historically, a significant portion of Intevac’swenue in any particular period has been attribetédlsales to a limited number of
customers. In 2011, 2010 and 2009 sales to Seagdtelitachi Global Storage Technologies each adeduior more than 10% of Intevac’s
revenues. In addition, in 2010 sales to Fuji Ele@ccounted for more than 10% of Intevac’s reveniurethe aggregate, sales to these three
customers accounted for 58%, 78% and 58% of rexeimu2011, 2010 and 2009 respectively. Intevac etsphat sales of Intevac’s products
to relatively few customers will continue to accotor a high percentage of Intevac’s revenues énftlieseeable future.

Foreign sales accounted for 65% of revenue in 2071% of revenue in 2010, and 50% of revenue in 20688 majority of Intevac’s
foreign sales are to companies in Asia or to UoBhganies for use in their Asian manufacturing orefi@ment operations. Intevac anticip:
that foreign sales will continue to be a significpartion of Intevac’s Equipment revenues. Integsatisk sputtering equipment customers
include magnetic disk manufacturers, such as Hejitic and Showa Denko, and vertically integratadd disk drive manufacturers, such as
Hitachi Global Storage Technology, Seagate, andt&de®igital. Intevac’s customers’ manufacturingifiéies are primarily located in
California, China, Taiwan, Japan, Malaysia and Sjuge.

Competition

The principal competitive factors affecting the keds for Intevac Equipment products include prpreduct performance and
functionality, ease of integration, customer suppod service, reputation and reliability. Inteves only one major competitor, Canon
Anelva, in the hard disk drive equipment market had historically experienced intense worldwide petition for magnetic disk sputtering
equipment. Intevac, only recently entered the PMpmgent market, and faces competition from largal#shed global competitors including
Applied Materials, Veeco Instruments, CentrothefmtBvoltaics, Roth & Rau AG and Von Ardenne as \aslbmaller regional competitors
and cell module manufacturers that are internadlyetbping manufacturing equipment that may be eatdrnally in the future. These
competitors all have substantially greater final¢gchnical, marketing, manufacturing and otheotgces as compared to Intevac.
Furthermore, any of Intevac’s competitors may depa@inhancements to, or future generations of, ctitiyeeproducts that offer superior
price or performance features. In addition, new petitors, with enhanced products may enter the etsuthat Intevac currently serves.

The principal competitive factors affecting Inte\Rizotonics products include price, extreme lowtlighel detection performance,
power consumption, resolution, size, ease of iatmn, reliability, reputation and customer sup@ortl service. Intevac faces substantial
competition for Intevac Photonics products, and ynan



competitors have substantially greater resourcdseand recognition. In the military market, ITTdurstries is a large and well-established
defense contractor and is a primary U.S. manufactfrimage intensifier tubes used in Generatlonight vision devices and their derivati
products. Intevac’s digital night vision sensomneras and systems are intended to displace Giemelnight vision based products.
Intevac expects that ITT, BAE Systems and othergaomes will develop digital night vision productsdsaggressively promote their sales.
Furthermore, Intevac’s LIVAR target identificatisensors and cameras face competition from CMC teleics, DRS, FLIR Systems,
Goodrich and Raytheon, established companies taatifacture infrared sensors and cameras whichrasemtly used in long-range target
identification systems. Within the near-eye dispiagrket, Intevac also faces competition from Rodk®ellins, Vuzix and BAE, all of
which can offer cost-competitive products. In tieencnercial markets, companies such as Andor, DBRY, Hamamatsu and Roper offer
competitive sensor and camera products, and companch as B&W Tek, GE Security, Horiba—Jobin Yv@oean Optics, Renishaw,
Thermo Scientific and Smiths Detection offer conitpet Raman spectrometer products.

Marketing and Sales

Equipment sales are made through Intevac’s digdesdorce, except in Japan where Intevac selfg@gucts through a distributor,
Matsubo. The selling process for Intevac’s Equiphpeaducts is multi- level and lengthy, involvimgdividuals from marketing, engineering,
operations, customer service and senior management.

Installing and integrating new equipment requirssilastantial investment by a customer. Sales e/att's systems depend, in
significant part, upon the decision of a prospectiustomer to replace obsolete equipment or t@@se manufacturing capacity by upgrading
or expanding existing manufacturing facilities grdmnstructing new manufacturing facilities, allvaliich typically involve a significant
capital commitment. After making a decision to selatevac’s equipment, Intevac’s customers typycalirchase one or more engineering
systems to develop and qualify their productiorcpss prior to ordering and taking delivery of nplétiproduction systems. Accordingly,
Intevac’s systems have a lengthy sales cycle, dwinich Intevac may expend substantial funds andagement time and effort with no
assurance that a sale will result.

The production of large complex systems requirésvic to make significant investments in inventooyh to fulfill customer orders a
to maintain adequate supplies of spare parts tacgepreviously shipped systems. In some casesdatmanufactures subsystems and/or
complete systems prior to receipt of a customeeiota smooth Intevac’s production flow and/or regligad time.

Intevac maintains inventories of spare parts indh#ed States, Singapore and China to suppodgtépment customers. Intevac often
requires its Equipment customers to pay for systertisree installments, with a portion of the systerice billed upon receipt of an order, a
portion of the price billed upon shipment, and llaéance of the price and any sales tax due upomletion of installation and acceptance of
the system at the customer’s factory. All custopreduct payments are recorded as customer advamiies$), are released into revenue in
accordance with Intevac’s revenue recognition golic

Intevac provides process and applications suppastomer training, installation, start-up assistaaed emergency service support to
Intevac’s Equipment customers. Intevac conducisitrg classes for Intevac’s customers’ processrexegs, machine operators and machine
service personnel. Additional training is also give Intevac’s customers during equipment instalhatintevac has field offices in Singapore,
China, Taiwan, and Malaysia to support Integaaistomers in Asia. Intevac generally adds additisupport centers as necessary to mai
close proximity to Intevac’s customers’ factoriestiey deploy Intevac’s systems.

Warranties for Intevac’s Equipment products typgicednge between 12 and 24 months from customespgance. During the warranty
period any necessary non-consumable parts areisd@uld installed without charge. Intevac’'s empésyprovide field service support in the
United States, Singapore, Malaysia, China, TaiwahJapan. In Japan, field service support is alpplemented by Intevac’s distributor,
Matsubo.

Sales of Intevac Photonics products for militarplagations are primarily made to the end user thlolntevac’s direct sales force.
Intevac sells to leading defense contractors sadtbakheed Martin Corporation, Northrop Grummanpg@oation, Raytheon, DRS
Technologies, BAE and Sagem.



Intevac is subject to long sales cycles in the @tios segment because many of Intevac’s produat, &s Intevac’s night vision
systems, typically must be designed into Intevaa'stomers’ products, which are often complex aatestf-the-art. These development
cycles are often multi-year, and Intevac’s salescantingent on Intevac’s customer successfulgrating Intevac’s product into its product,
completing development of its product and theniobig production orders for its product. Salesh#de products are also often dependel
ongoing funding of defense programs by the U.Seguwent and its allies. Additionally, sales to intgional customers are contingent on
issuance of export licenses by the U.S. government.

Sales of Intevac Photonics commercial productsreade through a combination of direct sales, systéagrators, distributors and val
added resellers and can also be subject to loeg sgtles.

Intevac Photonics generally invoices its researchdevelopment customers either as costs are awusr as program milestones are
achieved, depending upon the particular contraoigdeAs a government contractor, Intevac invoiecegamers using estimated annual rates
approved by the Defense Contracts Audit Agency (ABQ.

Research and Development and Intellectual Property

Intevac’s long-term growth strategy requires camtishdevelopment of new products. Intevac worksetyowith Intevac’s global
customers to design products that meet their pgehnical and production requirements. Producéld@ment and engineering
organizations are located primarily in the Unitedt8s and Singapore.

Intevac invested $34.3 million (41.3% of net revesiun fiscal 2011, $27.9 million (13.8% of neteaues) in fiscal 2010, and
$28.1 million (36.0% of net revenues) in fiscal 200r product development and engineering progremtseate new products and to improve
existing technologies and products. Intevac hastsgpe average of 24.0% of net revenues on prodastldpment and engineering over the
last five years.

Intevac’'s competitive position significantly depsnzh Intevac’s research, development, engineemagufacturing and marketing
capabilities, and not just on Intevac’s patent fimsi However, protection of Intevac’s technologiassets by obtaining and enforcing
intellectual property rights, including patentsingortant. Therefore, Intevac’s practice is te flatent applications in the United States and
other countries for inventions that Intevac consdmportant. Intevac has a substantial numbeat#nis in the United States and other
countries, and additional applications are penéingnew inventions. Although Intevac does not cdasintevac’s business materially
dependent upon any one patent, the rights of lotawnd the products made and sold under Intevatéhisaalong with other intellectual
property, including trademarks, know-how, traderstscand copyrights, taken as a whole, are a #ignif element of Intevac’s business.

Intevac enters into patent and technology licenagrgements with other companies when managemeatdees that it is in Intevac’s
best interest to do so. Intevac pays royalties uegisting patent license agreements for use d@géirepatented technologies in several of
Intevac’s products. Intevac also receives, fronetimtime, royalties from licenses granted to tipiadties. Royalties received from or paid to
third parties have not been material to Intevaoissolidated results of operations.

In the normal course of business, Intevac peridigicaceives and makes inquiries regarding posghtent infringements. In dealing
with such inquiries, it may be necessary or uskfulis to obtain or grant licenses or other rightswever, there can be no assurance that
licenses or rights will be available to us on comataly reasonable terms, or at all. If Intevaniig able to resolve or settle claims, obtain
necessary licenses and/or successfully prosecutefend Intevac’s position, Intevac’s businessarial condition and results of operations
could be materially and adversely affected.

Manufacturing

Intevac manufactures its Equipment products dad#ities in California and Singapore. Intevac'guipment manufacturing operations
include electromechanical assembly, vacuum proegs&brication of sputter sources, and systemnalsise alignment and testing.

Intevac Photonics products are manufactured atdits facilities in California and Wyoming. Intev®bhotonics manufactures sensors,
cameras, integrated camera systems, compact Raeetnsnetry instruments and near-eye display systesimg advanced manufacturing
techniques and equipment. Intevac’s operationsidiecl/acuum processing, and electromechanical aichbpystem assembly.
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Employees
At December 31, 2011, Intevac had 429 employeehjding 25 contract employees.

Compliance with Environmental Regulations

Intevac is subject to a variety of governmentaliteions relating to the use, storage, dischargedling, emission, generation,
manufacture, treatment and disposal of toxic oewtise hazardous substances, chemicals, materialaste. Intevac treats the cost of
complying with government regulations and operatirgafe workplace as a normal cost of businessozhtes the cost of these activities to
all functions, except where the cost can be isdlated charged to a specific function. The enviromi@estandards and regulations
promulgated by government agencies in CalifornigpWing and Singapore are rigorous and set a hayidard of compliance. Intevac
believes its costs of compliance with these regadatand standards are comparable to other congpap@rating similar facilities in these
jurisdictions.

Executive Officers of the Registrant
Certain information about our executive officeroé&ebruary 21, 2012 is listed below:

Name Age Position

Executive Officers

Norman H. Pont 73 Chairman of the Boar

Kevin Fairbairn 58 President and Chief Executive Offic

Jeffrey Andreson 50 Executive Vice President, Finance and Administratio
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre’

Andres Brugal 54 Executive Vice President and General Manager, &tev
Photonics

Luke Marusiak 49 Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Offi

Michael Russak 65 Executive Vice President and General Manager, Hard
Disk Equipment Produci

Christopher Smitl 52 Executive Vice President, Emerging Mark

Kimberly Burk 46 Vice President, Human Resour¢

Other Key Officers

Babak Adibi 57 Vice President and General Manager, Solar Img

Verle Aebi 57 Chief Technology Officer, Intevac Photon

James Birt 47 Vice President, Manufacturing and Customer Support,
Equipment Product

Terry Bluck 52 Vice President, Technology, Equipment Prodi

Timothy Justyr 49 Vice President of Operations, Intevac Photo

William Maffucci 55 Vice President and General Manager, Intevac Vision
Systems Produc

Edward Murrel 62 Vice President, Business Development, Solar Img

Mr. Pondis a founder of Intevac and has served as Chaiohtre Board since February 1991. Mr. Pond sereddrasident and Chief
Executive Officer from February 1991 until July 208nd again from September 2001 through Januarg. 200 Pond holds a BS in physics
from the University of Missouri at Rolla and an M&physics from the University of California at L&sigeles.
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Mr. Fairbairn joined Intevac as President and Chief Executivéc@®ffin January 2002 and was appointed a dirent&ebruary 2002.
Before joining Intevac, Mr. Fairbairn was employmdApplied Materials from July 1985 to January 200@st recently as Vice President i
General Manager of the Conductor Etch Organizatiith responsibility for the Silicon and Metal EtBhvisions. From 1996 to 1999,

Mr. Fairbairn was General Manager of Applied Matky'i Plasma Enhanced Chemical Vapor Depositionrigass Unit and from 1993 to
1996, he was General Manager of Applied Materidlasma Silane CVD Product Business Unit. Mr. Fairblolds an MA in engineering
sciences from Cambridge University.

Mr. Andresorjoined Intevac in June 2007 and has served as Hxedtice President, Finance and Administrationie€Rkinancial
Officer, Treasurer and Secretary since August 2B0idr to joining Intevac, Mr. Andreson served aandging Director and Controller of
Applied Materials’ Global Services product groumc® joining Applied Materials in 1995, Mr. Andresbeld a number of senior financial
positions, including Managing Director, Global Ricgal Planning and Analysis; Controller, Metron Siglary; Controller, North American
Sales and Service; and Controller, Volume Manufangu From 1989 through 1995, Mr. Andreson heldaas roles at Measurex
Corporation. Mr. Andreson holds an MBA from Santar& University and a BS in finance from San Jasg¢eSJniversity.

Mr. Brugal joined Intevac as Executive Vice President and Gaidanager, Intevac Photonics in January 2012ofgbining Intevac,
Mr. Brugal was employed at Vision Systems Intenal, a joint venture between Rockwell Collins &ibit Systems of America, from 2006
to 2012, serving as President and Chief Executifie€ from April 2007 to January 2012. From 20@52006, Mr. Brugal was employed a
consultant for DRS Technologies, a subsidiary afitéccanica SPA. Mr. Brugal retired from active garwith the U.S. Navy in October
2005 with the rank of Captain. Mr. Brugal holdsMS§ in strategic studies and security affairs frénva t).S. Naval War College; and a BS in
general engineering from the U.S. Naval Academy.

Mr. Marusiakrejoined Intevac in January 2010 and currentlyegas Executive Vice President, Chief Operatingc®ff Mr. Marusiak
had previously served as Intevac’s Chief Operabfficer from 2004 through 2008. From October 200@®tgh December 2009,
Mr. Marusiak served as the Chief Executive OfficEMDC Vacuum Products, LLC. Before joining Inteyadr. Marusiak was employed by
Applied Materials from July 1991 to April 2004, ni@scently as Senior Director of North American @i®ns. From 1984 to 1991,
Mr. Marusiak served as a signal officer in the LA8ny. Mr. Marusiak holds a BS in electrical enginieag from Gannon University and an
MS in teleprocessing science from the Universityotithern Mississippi.

Dr. Russakoined Intevac in July 2008 and currently serveExecutive Vice President and General Manager, Bésk Equipment
Products. Before joining Intevac Dr. Russak seag&resident and Chief Technical Officer of Kommagnf 2000 to 2007. From 1993 to 20
Dr. Russak served as Vice President of Researcbawdlopment at HMT Technology. Previously, Dr. Ralsheld management positions in
the Research Division of IBM Corporation. PriodBM, Dr. Russak worked for Grumman Aerospace Caafion as a contributing scientist.
Dr. Russak holds a BS in ceramic engineering aBtin materials science from Rutgers University.

Mr. Smithjoined Intevac in August 2010 as Executive VicesRlent, Emerging Markets. Mr. Smith has over 25 yed executive-level
experience in the semiconductor and solar capitaipenent markets. Prior to joining Intevac, Mr. 8mserved as Senior Vice President Sales
and Customer Support at Oerlikon Solar, from Noven#®07 to August 2010. From 2006 to 2007 he seage8enior Vice President of Se
and Service with Cymer. Previously, Mr. Smith wagptoyed by Applied Materials from 1994 to 2006. \ghat Applied Materials he held a
variety of executive-level customer support andrapens positions. He also served as product basigeoup general manager for Chemical
Mechanical Polishing and was managing director lob@l Business Development for the Dielectric ahgidical Vapor Deposition Product
Business Groups. Mr. Smith earned his BS in BusideBninistration / Material Management from SaneJState University.

Ms. Burkjoined Intevac in May 2000 and currently serve¥ige President of Human Resources. Prior to joinimgvac, Ms. Burk
served as Human Resources Manager of Moen, Ino. 1899 to 2000 and as Human Resources ManagemefdraMardon from 1994 to
1999. Ms. Burk holds a BS in sociology from Northdtinois University.

Dr. Adibi joined Intevac in November 2010 as Vice Presidedt@eneral Manager, Solar Implant. Prior to joininggvac, Dr. Adibi
was President, Chief Technology Officer and Co-Fmurof Solar Implant
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Technologies, Inc. Prior to founding Solar Impl@iethnologies, Inc., Dr. Adibi worked for Silicon sis Corporation from 2006 to 2008 as
the General Manager of the Solar Equipment Divisknmam 2003 to 2006 he served as Vice Presiddhieibaser Annealing Product Divisi

of Ultratech, Inc. Previously, Dr. Adibi was empéa/by Applied Materials from 1985 to 2003. WhileAgiplied Materials he held a variety
executive-level engineering positions. Dr. Adibldeonumerous patents in the area of ion implantaBoPhD in ion implantation and
semiconductors and a MS in nuclear power from $udversity in England and a BS in physics frora tmperial College of London.

Mr. Aebihas served as Chief Technology Officer of the lateRhotonics business since August 2006. PreviohilyAebi served as
President of the Photonics Division from July 2@0Quly 2006 and as General Manager of the Phatddigision since May 1995. Mr. Aebi
was elected as a Vice President of the Compangjitetber 1995. From 1988 through 1994, Mr. Aebi thasEngineering Manager of the
night vision business Intevac acquired from Vadasociates in 1991, where he was responsible ferpreduct development in the areas of
advanced photocathodes and image intensifiersAbbii holds a BS in physics and an MS in electraajineering from Stanford University.

Mr. Birt joined Intevac in September 2004 and currentlyeseas Vice President, Manufacturing and Custompp@&ti of the
Equipment Products Division. Before joining Intey®r. Birt was employed by Applied Materials fromlyl 1992 to September 2004, most
recently as Director, Field Operations/Quality Noftmerica. Mr. Birt holds a BS in electrical enginimg from Texas A&M University.

Mr. Bluckrejoined Intevac as Vice President, TechnologyhefEquipment Products Division in August 2004. Bluck had previously
worked at Intevac from December 1996 to Novemb@22f various engineering positions. The businessMr. Bluck worked for was sold
to Photon Dynamics in November 2002, and he wadmrag there as Vice President, Rapid Thermal PeoPesduct Engineering until
August 2004. Mr. Bluck holds a BS in physics froanSlose State University.

Mr. Justynhas served as Vice President of Operations, IntEBhatonics from October 2008. Mr. Justyn servedias President,
Equipment Manufacturing from April 1997 to Octol2808. Mr. Justyn joined Intevac in February 199d has served in various roles in our
Equipment Products Division and our former niglsiom business. Mr. Justyn holds a BS in chemicgineering from the University of
California, Santa Barbara.

Mr. Maffuccijoined Intevac in November 2007 as Managing Dineofdntevac’s Creative Display Systems subsidemg currently
serves as Vice President and General Manager dntéision Systems Products. Mr. Maffucci was thdander, Vice President and Chief
Operating Officer of Creative Display Systems uitsilacquisition by Intevac in 2007. Prior to foimglCreative Display Systems,

Mr. Maffucci worked for Rockwell-Collins OptronidsKaiser Electro-Optics from 1993 to 2006 in a egriof executive-level management
positions where his most recent position was Sedr, Displays Business Unit. Mr. Maffucci hol8S in Mechanical Engineering from
the University of California, Davis.

Mr. Murrer joined Intevac in November 2010 as Vice PresidBusiness Development, Solar Implant. Mr. Murrer basr 25 years of
executive-level experience in the solar capitaligment and software markets. Prior to joining l@evMr. Murrer was Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Co-Founder of Solar Implaethinologies, Inc. Prior to founding Solar Implaechinologies, Inc., Mr. Murrer worked
for Silicon Genesis Corporation from 2006 to 2088/ice President of Marketing and Business DevelamimFrom 2003 to 2006 he served
as Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing titberpass, Inc. Previously, Mr. Murrer was emplbyy Persistence Software from
2001 to 2003. Mr. Murrer holds a BS and a MS in Inaeical engineering from the Purdue University.

Available Information

Intevac’s website idttp://www.intevac.conintevac makes available free of charge, on or tiindts website, its annual, quarterly and
current reports, and any amendments to those g@asoon as reasonably practicable after elécalbynfiling such reports with, or
furnishing them to, the SEC. This website addredéstended to be an inactive textual reference anty none of the information contained on
Intevac’s website is part of this report or is inparated by reference herein.
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Trade Marks

“200 Lean® ,” “AccuLuber™,” “DeltaNw ,” “EBAP® ,” “BIERGI™,” “ExaminerR™,” “|-Port™,” “LEAN SOLAR™,”
“LithoPrime™,” “LIVAR @,” “MicroVista ©,” “NanoVista™”, “NanoTexture™Etch,” “NightVist® ,” “Night Port™ “PHARMA-ID™”
and “RAPID-ID™" among others, are our trademarks.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

The following factors could materially affect Ints/s business, financial condition or results oérggpions and should be carefully
considered in evaluating the Company and its bgsiria addition to other information presentedwlse in this report.

The industries we serve are cyclical, volatile amdpredictable.

The majority of our revenue is derived from theesafl equipment used to manufacture commodity teldigygoroducts such as disk
drives and photovoltaic (“PV”) solar cells. Thidagects us to business cycles, the timing, lengthvatatility of which can be difficult to
predict. When demand for commodity technology potslexceeds production capacity, then demand foraagpital equipment such as ours
tends to be amplified. Conversely, when supplyashmodity technology products exceeds demand, tearadd for new capital equipment
such as ours tends to be depressed. For examigle afaystems for magnetic disk production wekessy depressed from mid-1998 until
mid-2003 and grew rapidly from 2004 through 20@8ipfved by a downturn in the cycle in late 2007 evhcontinued through 2009. The
number of new systems delivered increased in 28kustomers increased their production capacitgsponse to increased demand for
digital storage, but decreased in 2011, as the diakddrive industry did not add the same levetabacity that it did in 2010. We cannot
predict with any certainty when these cycles wdgm or end.

Our equipment represents only a portion of thetahpkpenditure that our customers incur when tiggyrade or add production
capacity. Accordingly, our customers generally catrimmaking large capital expenditures far in esscef the cost of our systems alone
when they decide to purchase our systems. The tualgnof these capital expenditures requires ouomer's to have access to large amounts
of capital. Our customers generally reduce theiellef capital investment during downturns in the@ll economy or during a downturn in
their industries.

We must effectively manage our resources and ptamucapacity to meet rapidly changing demand. Business experiences rapid
growth and contraction, which stresses our infagstire, internal systems and managerial resoutng#ng periods of increasing demand for
our products, we must have sufficient manufactucapacity and inventory to meet customer demanidicaf retain and motivate a sufficient
number of qualified individuals; and effectively naae our supply chain. During periods of decreadamand for our products, we must be
able to align our cost structure with prevailingrked conditions; motivate and retain key employaed effectively manage our supply chain.

Sales of our equipment are primarily dependent amr @ustomers’ upgrade and capacity expansion plarsl whether our customers
select our equipment.

We have no control over our customers’ upgradecapécity expansion plans, and we cannot be suyentiieselect, or continue to
select, our equipment when they upgrade or exgagid ¢apacity. The sales cycle for our equipmestesys can be a year or longer, invol
individuals from many different areas of Intevad amumerous product presentations and demonstratosir prospective customers. Our
sales process also commonly includes producti@aoiples, customization of our products, and ireiath of evaluation systems in the
factories of our prospective customers. We do nt#ranto long-term contracts with our customers] antil an order is actually submitted by
a customer there is no binding commitment to pusehaur systems.

Intevac Photonics’ business is also subject to kalgs cycles because many of its products, suobrasilitary imaging products, often
must be designed into the customers’ end produttich are often complex state-of-the-art produtiese development cycles are typically
multi-year, and our sales are contingent on outotasrs successfully integrating our product in&itiproduct, completing development of
their product and then obtaining production ordergheir product from the U.S. government or itea.
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Sales of new manufacturing systems are also dependeobsolescence and replacement of the instadled of our customers’ existing
equipment with newer, more capable equipment. dfrages are developed that extend the useful liteeoinstalled base of systems, then we
tend to sell more upgrade products and fewer netesys, which can significantly reduce total revergr example, some of our 200 Lean
customers continue to use legacy systems for ugtion of perpendicular media, which delayedrémacement of such systems with new
200 Lean systems.

Our 200 Lean customers also experience compefition companies that produce alternative storagentgogies like flash memory,
which offer smaller size, lower power consumption anore rugged designs. These storage technolaggdseing used increasing in personal
computers and other electronics devices insteais&fdrives, and new classes of such productsyjdiag Internet appliances, tablet
computing devices, netbooks or mobile phones wittaaced capabilities, or "smartphones," have nevetained, nor are they likely in the
future to contain, a disk drive. Products usingralative technologies, such as flash memory, dptoaage and other storage technologies,
are becoming increasingly common and could becogigréficant source of competition to particulapipations of the products of our 200
Lean customers, which could adversely affect osulte of operations. If alternative technologiestsas flash memory, replace hard disk
drives as a significant method of digital storaten demand for our hard disk manufacturing prosluctuld decrease.

We operate in an intensely competitive marketpla@eg our competitors have greater resources thandee

In the market for our disk sputtering systems, wgegience competition from Canon Anelva, which &alsl a substantial number of
systems worldwide. Intevac is attempting to ertterRV equipment market, and faces competition fiange established competitors
including Applied Materials, Veeco Instruments, €etherm Photovoltaics, Roth & Rau AG, Von Arderamal cell module manufacturers
that are internally developing manufacturing equepirthat may be sold externally in the future He market for our military imaging
products we experience competition from companies ss ITT Industries and BAE Systems. In the ntarfe@@ our commercial imaging
products we compete with companies such as AndalsaDE2V, Hamamatsu and Roper Industries for sermsbcamera products, and with
companies such as B&W Tek, GE Security, Horiba-ratvion, Ocean Optics, Renishaw, Thermo Scientifid 8miths Detection for Raman
spectrometer products. Some of our competitors bakstantially greater financial, technical, mairkgtmanufacturing and other resources
than we do, especially in the PV equipment ma®et. competitors may develop enhancements to, ardigenerations of, competitive
products that offer superior price or performareatidres, and new competitors may enter our maaketsievelop such enhanced products.
Moreover, competition for our customers is interes®l our competitors have historically offered sabsal pricing concessions and
incentives to attract our customers or retain thgisting customers.

We are exposed to risks associated with a highlgaamtrated customer base.

Historically, a significant portion of our revenimeany particular period has been attributablealesof our disk sputtering systems to a
limited number of customers. This concentratiogudgtomers, when combined with changes in the cuatwmpecific capacity plans and
market share shifts can lead to extreme variahilityur revenue and financial results from periogériod.

Industry consolidation can limit the number of pital customers for our products. Seagate acqWitaxtor in 2006 and Samsung’s
hard disk drive business in 2011. Western Digitajuared Komag in 2007, Hoya’s magnetic media opamatin 2010 and announced in 2011
that it will acquire Hitachi Global Storage Techogy. The concentration of our customer base mapleraur customers to demand pricing
and other terms unfavorable to Intevac, and makesare vulnerable to changes in demand by a giuetomer. Orders from a relatively
limited number of manufacturers have accounteddiod, will likely continue to account for, a substahportion of our revenues. The loss of
one of these large customers, or delays in punasbdsi them, could have a material and adverseteffeour revenues.

Our growth depends on development of technicallyadced new products and processes.

We have invested heavily, and continue to investhé development of new products, such as oul2@@ Gen Il system, our LEAN
SOLAR systems for PV applications, our digital riigision products, our Raman system products amahear-eye display products. Our
success in developing and selling new productsrdépe
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upon a variety of factors, including our ability firedict future customer requirements, make teldgical advances, achieve a low total cost
of ownership for our products, introduce new prdadumn schedule, manufacture products effgetively including transitioning production
volume manufacturing; commercialize and attain @ugr acceptance of our products; and achieve aaulepdnd reliable performance of our
new products in the field. Our new product decisiand development commitments must anticipate moaotisly evolving industry
requirements significantly in advance of salesaddition, we are attempting to expand into newetated markets, including the PV market.
Our expansion into the PV market is dependent tipersuccess of our customers’ development planse €6 which are starps and in thei
preliminary stages of development, as well as thigility to raise capital to fund their future déy@ment and capacity expansion. To date we
have not recognized material revenue from suchymtsd Failure to correctly assess the size of takets, to successfully develop cost
effective products to address the markets or &béish effective sales and support of the new prtsdwould have a material adverse effec
future revenues and profits.

Rapid technological change in our served markefsires us to rapidly develop new technically adeahproducts. Our future success
depends in part on our ability to develop and offew products with improved capabilities and totsare to enhance our existing product:
new products have reliability or quality problerogy performance may be impacted by reduced ortayser manufacturing costs, delays in
acceptance and payment for new products and additservice and warranty expenses.

Our operating results fluctuate significantly fromquarter to quarter, which can lead to volatility ithe price of our common stock.

Our quarterly revenues and common stock price Ragtuated significantly. We anticipate that ouveaues, operating margins and
common stock price will continue to fluctuate fovariety of reasons, including: (1) changes indbmand, due to seasonality, cyclicality and
other factors in the markets for computer systatmwage subsystems and consumer electronics confalisks our customers produce with
our systems; (2) delays or problems in the intrtidncand acceptance of our new products, or delieéexisting products; (3) timing of
orders, acceptance of new systems by our custasnencellation of those orders; (4) new produsgsyices or technological innovations by
our competitors or us; (5) changes in our manufaacosts and operating expense; (6) changesnargeeconomic, political, stock market
and industry conditions; and (7) any failure of operating results to meet the expectations ofstment research analysts or investors.

Any of these, or other factors, could lead to vibtatand/or a rapid change in the trading priceoaf common shares. In the past,
securities class action litigation has been in&dwagainst companies following periods of voltiln the market price of their securities. Any
such litigation, if instituted against Intevac, tbresult in substantial costs and diversion of aggment time and attention.

Adverse economic conditions and volatility and diption of the capital and credit markets may negagiy impact our revenues and our
ability to access financing.

Economic conditions worldwide have contributed ¢éer@ased spending by our customers and a slowdotie ihard disk drive
industry. These factors have adversely impactedparating results in prior periods and have cause be cautious about our future
outlook. Our customers also continue to remainicaatabout the economy. Negative macroeconomigéoizhl recessionary factors, further
volatility or disruption in the capital and crediiarkets or further uncertainty or weakening in kegrkets could negatively impact spending
for our products and may materially adversely d@ftag business, operating results and financiatlitam.

In addition, while we intend to finance operatiovith existing cash and cash flow from operatiohggcessary, we may require
financing to support our continued operations. Buthe existing uncertainty in the capital and @retvhrkets, our access to capital may na
available on terms acceptable to us or at all.

We may not be able to obtain export licenses frdma U.S. government permitting delivery of our praets to international customers.

Many of our products, especially Intevac Photonmrsducts, require export licenses from U.S. gowemt agencies under the Export
Administration Act, the Trading with the Enemy Axft1917, the Arms Export Act of 1976 or the Intdfomal Traffic in Arms Regulations.
These regulations limit the potential market fomgoof our products.
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We can give no assurance that we will be successhitaining all the licenses necessary to exportproducts. Heightened government
scrutiny of export licenses for defense relatedipots has resulted in lengthened review periodsdiodicense applications. Exports to
countries that are not considered by the U.S. goment to be allies are likely to be prohibited, avdn sales to U.S. allies may be limited.
Failure to comply with export control laws, incladiidentification and reporting of all exports aedexports of controlled technology or
exports made without correct license approval groper license use could result in severe penaltiesrevocation of licenses. Failure to
obtain export licenses, delays in obtaining license revocation of previously issued licenses waukvent us from selling the affected
products outside the United States and could negjatimpact our results of operations.

The Intevac Photonics business is dependent on ldg@/ernment contracts, which are subject to fixedcpng, immediate termination
and a humber of procurement rules and regulations.

We sell our Photonics products and services diréotthe U.S. government, as well as to prime @mars for various U.S. government
programs. The U.S government is considering sicgnifi changes in the level of existing, follow-orreplacement programs. We cannot
predict the impact of potential changes in priestdue to military transformations and/or the ratfrfuture war-related activities. A shift of
government priorities to programs in which we do participate and/or reductions in funding for loe termination of programs in which we
do participate, unless offset by other programsapqbrtunities, could have a material adverse effiaour financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows.

Funding of multi-year government programs is suti@congressional appropriations, and there iguarantee that the U.S.
government will make further appropriations, patécly given the U.S. government’s recent focuspending in other areas. Sales to the
U.S. government and its prime contractors may bésaffected by changes in procurement policiesgbudonsiderations and political
developments in the United States or abroad. Famele, if the U.S. government is less focused darte spending or there is a decrease in
hostilities, demand for our products could decre@ke loss of funding for a government program waeisult in a loss of future revenues
attributable to that program. The influence of afiyhese factors, which are beyond our control]aoegatively impact our results of
operations.

A significant portion of our U.S. government reveris derived from fixed-price development and paditun contracts. Under fixed-
price contracts, unexpected increases in the oattvelop or manufacture a product, whether dumeatocurate estimates in the bidding
process, unanticipated increases in material cadsced production volumes, inefficiencies or ofaetors, are borne by us. We have
experienced cost overruns in the past that hawdteesin losses on certain contracts, and may éxpeg additional cost overruns in the fut
We are required to recognize the total estimatgmhohof cost overruns in the period in which they farst identified. Such cost overruns
could have a material adverse effect on our restiligperations.

Generally, government contracts contain provisjpgrgnitting termination, in whole or in part, withtqarior notice at the government’s
convenience upon the payment of compensation anlwérk done and commitments made at the timerafiteation. We cannot ensure that
one or more of the government contracts under wivighor our customers, operate will not be terngidainder these circumstances. Also
cannot ensure that we, or our customers, wouldleta procure new government contracts to offsetréevenues lost as a result of any
termination of existing contracts, nor can we eaghat we, or our customers, will continue to ramaigood standing as federal contractors.

As a U.S. government contractor we must comply wjiecific government rules and regulations andsabgect to routine audits and
investigations by U.S. government agencies. If ailtd comply with these rules and regulations, dsults could include: (1) reductions in
the value of our contracts; (2) reductions in antsymeviously billed and recognized as revenuec@®fract modifications or termination;
(4) the assessment of penalties and fines; ansu&ension or debarment from government contractisgibcontracting for a period of time
or permanently.

Changes to our effective tax rate affect our resutif operations.

As a global company, we are subject to taxatiaiménUnited States and various other countries.ifsignt judgment is required to
determine and estimate worldwide tax liabilitiesir@uture effective tax rate could be affected fiy:changes in tax laws; (2) the allocatior
earnings to countries with differing tax rates;
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(3) changes in worldwide projected annual earningsirrent and future years: (4) accounting promeuments; or (5) changes in the valua
of our deferred tax assets and liabilities. Althowge believe our tax estimates are reasonable ttaer be no assurance that any final
determination will not be different from the tream reflected in our historical income tax prowis@nd accruals, which could result in
additional payments by Intevac.

Intevac enjoys a tax holiday in Singapore throdghtax years ending in 2015. The tax holiday presid lower income tax rate on
certain classes of income so long as certain thidstof business investment and employment levelsret in Singapore. We may lose our
eligibility for such benefits if, among other thsyghese requirements are not met or if Intevagranet losses in Singapore for which it
cannot claim a deduction. Loss of these tax beneiuld result in our income in Singapore beingtbat the statutory rate of 17% instead of
the agreed Pioneer Tax Holiday rate of 0%. A Idsallar part of these tax benefits would adversafect our results of operations and cash
flows.

We booked significant tax benefits in 2008, 2008 2811 based on our belief that we could both daagk losses and tax credits to
years Intevac paid income taxes and carry forwasdds and tax credits to future years where wevmelve may generate taxable inco
Intevac will need to generate approximately $57illon of taxable income in the United States inerto fully realize the Federal deferred
tax assets and $22.1 million of taxable incomeing&pore in order to fully realize the foreign deéel tax assets, each as recorded as of
December 31, 2011. If our expectations of futummine are incorrect, we could be required to edalaivaluation allowance against some or
all of the deferred tax assets.

Our success depends on international sales andrtt@agement of global operations.

The majority of our revenues come from regionsidetthe United States. Most of our internationd&sare to customers in Asia, wh
includes products shipped to overseas operatiobsSfcompanies. We currently have manufacturiedities in California, Wyoming and
Singapore and international customer support affineSingapore, Taiwan, China, and Malaysia. Weeekfhat international sales will
continue to account for a significant portion of éatal revenue in future years. Certain of ourpdigps are also located outside the United
States.

Managing our global operations presents challeimgggding, but not limited to, those arising froi) global trade issues; (2) variatic
in protection of intellectual property and othegdérights in different countries; (3) concerndb$. governmental agencies regarding pos
national commercial and/or security issues posegrbwing manufacturing business in Asia; (4) fladtan of interest rates, raw material
costs, labor and operating costs, and exchangg mattuding the weakening relative position of thé. dollar; (5) variations in the ability to
develop relationships with suppliers and otherlibeainesses; (6) changes in the laws and regatibthe United States, including export
restrictions, and other countries, as well as timérpretation and application; (7) the need wvjate technical and spares support in different
locations; (8) political and economic instabili{®) cultural differences; (10) varying governmemténtives to promote development;
(11) shipping costs and delays; (12) adverse comditin credit markets; (13) variations in tariffgiotas, tax codes and other market barriers;
and (14) barriers to movement of cash.

We must regularly assess the size, capability acation of our global infrastructure and make appede changes to address these
issues.

We may be subject to additional impairment chargke to potential declines in the fair value of oassets.

As a result of our acquisitions, we have significgmodwill and intangible assets on our balancesiWe test goodwill and intangible
assets for impairment on a periodic basis as reduand whenever events or changes in circumstamtieate that the carrying value may
be recoverable. The events or changes that cogldresus to test our goodwill and intangible asgatémpairment include: a significant
reduction in our stock price, and as a result mar&pitalization, changes in our estimated futwghcflows, as well as changes in rates of
growth in our industry or in any of our reportingits. In the fourth quarter of 2008, we recordedmapairment charge of $10.5 million for
goodwill due to a decline in our market capitalizatand certain purchased technology intangibletastue to lower revenue expectations.
We will continue to evaluate the
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carrying value of our remaining goodwill and intéslg assets and if we determine in the future thette is a potential further impairment in
any of our reporting units, we may be requiredeimord additional charges to earnings which coultenaly adversely affect our financial
results and could also materially adversely affestbusiness. See Note 6 “Goodwill and Purchaseshgjible Assets, Net” in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionfrimation related to impairment of goodwill andangible assets.

Our success is dependent on recruiting and retaigia highly talented work force.

Our employees are vital to our success, and ouni@yagement, engineering and other employees fliruliiito replace. We generally
do not have employment contracts with our key eygss. Further, we do not maintain key person fifgifance on any of our employees.
The expansion of high technology companies worléwids increased demand and competition for qualifegsonnel, and has made
companies increasingly protective of prior emplaydemay be difficult for us to locate employeésonare not subject to non-competition
agreements and other restrictions.

The majority of our U.S. operations are locate@alifornia where the cost of living and of recrngiemployees is high. Our operating
results depend, in large part, upon our abilityetain and attract qualified management, engingenrarketing, manufacturing, customer
support, sales and administrative personnel. Furtbiee, we compete with industries such as the dsiddrive, semiconductor, and solar
industries for skilled employees. Failure to retkisting key personnel, or to attract, assimitateetain additional highly qualified employe
to meet our needs in the future, could have a riahgend adverse effect on our business, finanaatition and results of operations.

We are dependent on certain suppliers for parts dige our products.

We are a manufacturing business. Purchased parssittioe the largest component of our product dost. ability to manufacture
depends on the timely delivery of parts, componantssubassemblies from suppliers. We obtain sdriteedkey components and
subassemblies used in our products from a singipligu or a limited group of suppliers. If any afrcsuppliers fail to deliver quality parts on
a timely basis, we may experience delays in manurfi;ag), which could result in delayed product deties, increased costs to expedite
deliveries or develop alternative suppliers, oursgredesign of our products to accommodate atera suppliers. Some of our suppliers are
thinly capitalized and may be vulnerable to failgreen recent economic conditions.

Our business depends on the integrity of our inésltual property rights.

The success of our business depends upon theitptefour intellectual property rights, and we oahensure that: (1) any of our
pending or future patent applications will be alémivor that any of the allowed applications willisgued as patents or will issue with claims
of the scope we sought; (2) any of our patentsnaitibe invalidated, deemed unenforceable, circumteeeor challenged; (3) the rights grar
under our patents will provide competitive advaetatp us; (4) other parties will not develop simpeoducts, duplicate our products or
design around our patents; or (5) our patent rightsllectual property laws or our agreements adlequately protect our intellectual property
or competitive position.

From time to time, we have received claims thataweeinfringing third parties’ intellectual propenights or seeking to invalidate our
rights. We cannot ensure that third parties will inahe future claim that we have infringed cutrenfuture patents, trademarks or other
proprietary rights relating to our products. Angiohs, with or without merit, could be time-consuminesult in costly litigation, cause
product shipment delays or require us to enterrioyalty or licensing agreements. Such royaltyiaerising agreements, if required, may not
be available on terms acceptable to us.

We could be involved in litigation.

From time to time we may be involved in litigatiohvarious types, including litigation alleging iiffgement of intellectual property
rights and other claims. Litigation is expensiughjects us to the risk of significant damages aulires significant management time and
attention and could have a material and advergseteéih our business, financial condition and reseflioperations.
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Difficulties in integrating past or future acquisibns could adversely affect our business.

We have completed a number of acquisitions durimgoperating history. For example, in 2007, we a&eglicertain assets of DeltaNu,
LLC and certain assets of Creative Display Systémh€, in 2008 we acquired certain assets of OC ikamlBalzers Ltd. and in 2010 we
acquired the outstanding shares of Solar Implanhfielogies, Inc. We have spent and may contingpénd significant resources identifying
and pursuing future acquisition opportunities. Ais@ions involve numerous risks including: (1) difilties in integrating the operations,
technologies and products of the acquired compa(igshe diversion of our management’s attentimmf other business concerns; and
(3) the potential loss of key employees of the @egucompanies. Failure to achieve the anticipatsukfits of the prior and any future
acquisitions or to successfully integrate the of@na of the companies we acquire could have anahtnd adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Aaure acquisitions could also result in potengiailutive issuance of equity securities,
acquisition- or divestiture-related writdfs or the assumption of debt and contingent liidds. In addition, we have made and will contirta
consider making strategic divestitures. With anyedtiture, there are risks that future operatirsglts could be unfavorably impacted if
targeted objectives, such as cost savings, araami¢ved or if other business disruptions occwa essult of the divestiture or activities related
to the divestiture.

We use hazardous materials and are subject to riskeon-compliance with environmental and safetygdations.

We are subject to a variety of governmental regaiatrelating to the use, storage, discharge, iapdtmission, generation,
manufacture, treatment and disposal of toxic oewtise hazardous substances, chemicals, materialaste. If we fail to comply with
current or future regulations, such failure coddult in suspension of our operations, alteratfoouo manufacturing process, or substantial
civil penalties or criminal fines against us or officers, directors or employees. Additionallyesie regulations could require us to acquire
expensive remediation or abatement equipment ioicto substantial expenses to comply with them.

Business interruptions could adversely affect oysarations.

Our operations are vulnerable to interruption log,fearthquake, floods or other natural disastearantines or other disruptions
associated with infectious diseases, national tafa®e, terrorist activities, war, disruptions imwr@omputing and communications
infrastructure due to power loss, telecommunicati@ilure, human error, physical or electronic siggibreaches and computer viruses, and
other events beyond our control. We do not havetaildd disaster recovery plan. Despite our implaatéon of network security measures,
our tools and servers may be vulnerable to commitgses, break-ins and similar disruptions fronauthorized tampering with our computer
systems and tools located at customer sites. €ailitistability could cause us to incur increasestg in transportation, make such
transportation unreliable, increase our insuratsgscor cause international currency markets wdhte. All these unforeseen disruptions
instabilities could have the same effects on oppbers and their ability to timely deliver theirqaucts. In addition, we do not carry suffici
business interruption insurance to compensateru|ftosses that may occur, and any losses or damiacurred by us could have a material
adverse effect on our business and results of tipesa For example, we self-insure earthquake ttigcause we believe this is the prudent
financial decision based on the high cost of thetéd coverage available in the earthquake inseramarket. An earthquake could
significantly disrupt our operations, most of white conducted in California. It could also sigrafitly delay our research and engineering
effort on new products, most of which is also castdd in California. We take steps to minimize tlaenége that would be caused by business
interruptions, but there is no certainty that diiores will prove successful.

We are required to evaluate our internal control @vfinancial reporting under Section 404 of the Szanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and any
adverse results from such evaluation could resulta loss of investor confidence in our financial perts and have an adverse effect on
our stock price.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002, our management must perform evaluatiormiointernal control over
financial reporting. Beginning in 2004, our FormK(as included a report by management of theessgaent of the adequacy of such
internal control. Additionally, our independent istgred public accounting firm must publicly attesthe effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting.
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We have completed the evaluation of our internatimds over financial reporting as required by 88tt04 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.
Although our assessment, testing, and evaluatisutesl in our conclusion that as of December 31120ur internal controls over financial
reporting were effective, we cannot predict thecoate of our testing in future periods. Ongoing cthamze with this requirement is complex,
costly and time-consuming. If Intevac fails to ntain effective internal control over financial reping; our management does not timely
assess the adequacy of such internal control; mindependent registered public accounting firmsdoeet deliver an unqualified opinion as to
the effectiveness of our internal control over fioial reporting, then we could be subject to resteent of previously reported financial
results, regulatory sanctions and a decline irptit#ic’s perception of Intevac, which could have a matard adverse effect on our busint
financial condition and results of operations.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

Intevac maintains its corporate headquarters ineS@tara, California. The location, approximateesind type of facility of the princip
properties are listed below. Intevac leases atisgroperties and does not own any real estate.

Location Square Footag Principal Use
Santa Clara, CA 169,58 Corporate Headquarters; Equipment and Intevac

Photonics Marketing, Manufacturing, Engineering
and Customer Suppc

Fremont, CA 9,50¢ Intevac Photonics Sensor Fabricat

Laramie, WY 12,00( Intevac Photonics Raman Spectrometer
Manufacturing

Carlsbad, CA 10,36( Intevac Photonics Micro Display Product
Manufacturing

Singapore 31,94% Equipment Manufacturing and Customer Sup

Malaysia 1,291 Equipment Customer Suppt

Taiwan 3,00: Equipment Customer Suppt

Shenzhen, Chin 2,56¢ Equipment Customer Suppt

Intevac considers these properties adequate toitaeeirrent and future requirements. Intevac radylassesses the size, capability and
location of its global infrastructure and periodiiganakes adjustments based on these assessments.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, Intevac is involved in claimsddagal proceedings that arise in the ordinary sewf business. Intevac expects that
the number and significance of these matters niliéase as Intevac’s business expands. Any claipoeedings against us, whether
meritorious or not, could be time consuming, resuttostly litigation, require significant amoum@Emanagement time, result in the diversion
of significant operational resources, or requirgéausnter into royalty or licensing agreements Whi€required, may not be available on te
favorable to us or at all. Intevac is not preseatfarty to any lawsuit or proceeding that, inatgs opinion, is likely to seriously harm
Intevac’s business.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
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PART Il

ltem 5.  Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securiti¢
Price Range of Common Stock

Intevac common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Starket (NASDAQ Global Select) under the symbol “ICA As of February 21,
2012, there were 105 holders of record. In fiseslrg 2011 and 2010, Intevac did not declare oicpaly dividends to its stockholders. Inte
currently has no plans to declare or pay cash eindd.

The following table sets forth the high and lowsitg sale prices per share as reported on The §&tdak Market for the periods
indicated.

High Low

Fiscal 2011

First Quartel $15.2¢ $11.02

Second Quarte 12.47 9.4z

Third Quartel 10.21 6.4z

Fourth Quarte 8.5t 6.11
Fiscal 2010

First Quarte! $16.82 $13.6:

Second Quarte 15.4¢ 10.4¢

Third Quartel 11.57 9.04

Fourth Quarte 15.2¢ 9.7:

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers
None.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return on Intevac’s Common Stock withtthf the NASDAQ Stock
Market Total Return Index, a broad market indexlighled by the Center for Research in Security Brt€RSP”), and the NASDAQ
Computer Manufacturers Stock Total Return Indexmited by CRSP. The comparison for each of the perassumes that $100 was inve
on December 31, 2006 in Intevac’'s Common Stockstbeks included in the NASDAQ Stock Market Tot&tiRn Index and the stocks
included in the NASDAQ Computer Manufacturers Stdokal Return Index. These indices, which reflectfulas for dividend reinvestment
and weighting of individual stocks, do not neceibgagflect returns that could be achieved by indihal investors.
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COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN SINCE DECEMBE R 31, 2006
AMONG INTEVAC, NASDAQ STOCK MARKET TOTAL RETURN IND EX AND
NASDAQ COMPUTER MANUFACTURERS TOTAL RETURN INDEX

—{ = Intevac, Inc
200 —2— NASDAQ Stock Market Total Return Index /
—O— NASDAQ Compuier Manufaciurers Total Relurn [nLEu/O/
e
& 50
-
S| 100 e —
2 \ W
] T T T ] I I
12/3 142006 1273120007 12/31/20008 12/31/2009 (2312010 12/31/2011
12/31/0¢ 12/31/0° 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0¢ 12/31/1( 12/31/1:
Intevac, Inc $ 10C $ 56 $ 20 $ 4 $ 54 $ 29
Nasdaq Stock Market Total Return Inc 10C 10¢ 66 95 11z 114
Nasdaq Computer Manufacturers Total
Return Inde» 10C 14¢€ 62 13¢ 19¢ 22€

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial information hashelerived from Intevac’s historical audited corgatked financial statements and
should be read in conjunction with the consoliddiedncial statements, the accompanying notes aaddgement’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationstfi@ corresponding fiscal years.

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(in thousands, except per share data)
Net revenue: $ 82,97 $202,52¢ $ 77,98 $110,30° $215,83:
Gross profit $ 30,43: $ 87,67 $ 32,72 $ 43,33¢ $ 96,04
Operating income (los: $(30,74)  $ 31,23¢ $(17,34) $(30,47) $ 27,43¢
Net income (loss $(21,97H)  $ 28,04¢ $(10,077)  $(15,34Y $ 27,34t
Earnings (loss) per shai
Basic $ (09 $ 12 $ (046 $ (07) $ 1.2¢
Diluted $ (09 $ 1.22 $ (04¢ $ 077y $ 1.2t
At year end:
Total asset $225,82: $251,77: $203,37¢ $189,16¢ $215,41:
Long-term deb $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 1,89¢
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ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is imded to facilitate an understanding of Intevac’sibess and results of
operations. This MD&A should be read in conjunctwith Intevac’s Consolidated Financial Statemenis tae accompanying Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsesvimethis Form 10- K. The following discussion cains forward-looking statements and
should also be read in conjunction with the cawigrstatement set forth at the beginning of thisr20-K. MD&A includes the following
sections:

» Overview:a summary of Intevi s business, measurements and opportun

» Results of Operationa discussion of operating resu

+ Liquidity and Capital Resourcean analysis of cash flows, sources and uses of caslractual obligations and financial positi
« Critical Accounting Policiesa discussion of critical accounting policies thequire the exercise of judgments and estim:

Overview

Intevac provides process manufacturing equipmdatieas to the hard disk drive industry and higlegarctivity process manufacturing
equipment and inspection solutions to the photaiolf'PV”) industry. Intevac also provides sensa@neras and systems for government
applications such as night vision and long-ranggetaidentification and for commercial applicationghe inspection, medical, scientific and
security industries. Intevac’'s customers includeufiacturers of hard disk drives and PV cells ad agthe U.S. government and its agencies
and contractors; medical, scientific and securitymwpanies; and law enforcement. Intevac reportssegments: Equipment and Intevac
Photonics. During the fourth quarter of 2010, Iatecompleted the acquisition of the outstandingeshaf Solar Implant Technologies, Inc.
(“SIT"), a privately-owned, development-stage compahat was creating a manufacturing module forapylications. During the first
quarter of 2012, Intevac sold certain assets caimgrits semiconductor mainframe technology to BsoAutomation Inc. (“Brooks”).

Product development and manufacturing activitiesiotn North America and Asia. Intevac has fielflags in Asia to support its
equipment customers. Intevac’s equipment and sepricducts are highly technical and, with the elioepf Japan, are sold primarily
through a direct sales force. In Japan, salesypieally made by Intevac’s Japanese distributorisuio.

Intevac’s results are driven by worldwide demandhfard disk drives, which in turn depends on enel-demand for personal
computers, enterprise data storage including ax-titoud storage and nelame applications, personal video players and vigame platform
that include such drives. Demand for Intevac’s pougnt is impacted by Intevac’s customers’ relathagket share positions and production
capacity needs. Intevac continues to execute itjpatent diversification strategy into new markegsmtroducing products for PV solar cell
manufacturing. Intevac believes that expansiontimgmarket, which is significantly larger tharethard disk drive deposition equipment
market, will result in incremental equipment revesifior Intevac and decrease Intevac’s dependentteedrard disk drive industry. Intevac’s
business is subject to cyclical industry conditimsdemand for manufacturing equipment and sesdaa change depending on supply and
demand for hard disk drives and PV cells, as webther factors such as global economic conditaomstechnological advances in fabrica
processes.

Change Change
Fiscal Year 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 2010 2010 vs. 200
(in thousands, except percentages and per share aomis)
Net revenue. $ 82,97« $202,52¢ $ 77,98: $(119,552 $ 124,54!
Gross profit 30,43: 87,67: 32,72 (57,241 54,95:
Gross margin perce 36.71% 43.2% 42.(% (6.6) points 1.3 point:
Net income (loss (21,979 28,04¢ (10,077 (50,024 38,12¢
Earnings (loss) per diluted sh¢ $ (0.9¢) $ 1.2 $ (0.4¢) $(2.18 $ 1.6¢
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Fiscal 2009 financial results reflected a challagginvironment that resulted from the economic dlmmn. Demand in the hard disk
drive industry was flat compared to fiscal 2008 &mdvac’'s Equipment customers did not require cépadditions. During fiscal 2009,
demand for new equipment resulted primarily from tbtirement of some legacy systems and custoraeareh and development activities,
including in patterned media. At the end of 200@yaver, Intevac’s hard drive customers began tatteliyery of and ordering additional
systems for 2010 capacity needs. In 2009, Intevetdnics business grew, driven by U.S. governmpganding plus incorporation of Intevac
products into development, pre-production and searly stage production programs.

Fiscal 2010 financial results significantly improvas Intevac's Equipment customers took delivergystems to increase their
production capacity in response to the increasgmgand for hard drives resulting from a generaléasmg demand for digital storage in
multiple applications. In fiscal 2010 Intevac alsgested heavily in the development of its PV saf@nufacturing products and in late 2010,
Intevac acquired SIT to develop ion implementasgstems for PV cell manufacturing. Net revenueinduiscal 2010 reflected higher
equipment sales to disk manufacturers and increasexdac Photonics’ contract research and developfiR&D”) and product sales. Net
income during fiscal 2010 reflected higher net ras, partially offset by higher selling, generadl administrative expenses, and higher
income tax expense. The increase in selling, géaachadministrative expenses during fiscal 2016 pramarily a result of variable
compensation expenses, legal expenses associdtednnarbitration proceeding covering Intevac'sdivads of auction rate securities (“ARS”
and transaction costs associated with the accunsiti SIT.

Fiscal 2011 financial results reflected a challagginvironment that resulted from consolidationthahard drive industry, the floods
Thailand, and the impact of U.S. government defénsiget delays. Net revenues during fiscal 201l&ctfd lower equipment sales to disk
manufacturers and lower Intevac Photonics’ contR&dD offset in part by higher Intevac Photonicsitaily product sales. Intevac sold fewer
200 Lean systems in fiscal 2011, as Intevac’s Harka customers delayed equipment purchases dthangxtended regulatory approval
process for the acquisitions by Seagate and WeBligital. Also Intevac’s hard drive customers haddasted heavily in increased production
capacity in the previous year, which met some efrtB011 capacity needs. Finally, floods in Thailaasulted in supply chain disruptions for
Intevac’s hard drive customers. During fiscal 20higvac also continued its efforts to diversifg gquipment business and recognized the
first revenue on its PV and semiconductor produets.fiscal 2011, Intevac Photonics product reveinomm low-light sensors and cameras
increased; however, contract R&D revenue declireedeatain R&D contracts had been completed in thee pear and contract funding for
several large programs was impacted due to detalysS. government defense budget approvals. Thalf2011 net loss reflected lower net
revenues and increased operating expenses froindlision of the SIT expenses which was acquirettiénfourth quarter of fiscal 2010,
offset in-part by reduced variable compensatioreesps and recognition of an income tax benefitifguiscal 2011, the Company did not
record compensation expense in association withrdgt sharing and executive incentive variablenp@nsation programs as a result of being
in a loss position.

In fiscal 2012, Intevac expects to see a recovetiieé hard drive business in the second half of#a as the pending industry
acquisitions are completed and as the industryvexsdrom the effects of the Thailand flooding lie fourth quarter of fiscal 2011. Intevac
continues to believe that long-term demand for fus drives will increase, driven by growth in demd for digital storage, the need for
corporations to replace and update employee comgyuiereased information technology spending,idig growth rate in areal density
improvements and the proliferation of personal cotags into emerging economies. The number of dighufacturing systems needed to
support this growth is expected to vary from yeaydar depending on the factors noted above. ¢alfd012, Intevac expects to complete
customer qualifications on its PV manufacturingducts and start to obtain repeat orders from custenburing the first quarter of 2012,
Intevac discontinued offering products to the semdtctor industry and sold certain assets whichpe@m®d its semiconductor mainframe
technology to Brooks.

In fiscal 2012, Intevac expects that Intevac Phis®husiness levels will grow driven primarily thyetrecovery of the contract R&D
business, as several key U.S. defense programseddaudgetary funding in the fourth quarter of 2@hd the U.S. military continues to
develop night vision solutions based on Intevagyita low-light sensor technology.
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Results of Operations
Net revenues

Years Ended December 31,

Change Change
2011 vs. 2010 vs.
2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousands)
Equipment $54,87¢  $168,25.  $51,38¢  $(113,37)  $116,86:
Intevac Photonic 28,09¢ 34,27 26,59: (6,179 7,682
Total net revenue $82,97¢ $202,52¢ $77,98: $(119,55)) $124 54!

Net revenues consist primarily of sales of equipnused to manufacture thin-film disks and PV cellsd, to a lesser extent, related
equipment and system components; revenue fromaimesearch and development related to the dewelopof electro-optical sensors,
cameras and systems; and sales of low-light imagiioducts and table-top and handheld Raman institeme

The decrease in Equipment revenues in 2011 wagprilaarily to a decrease in the number of 200 Leestesns delivered. In 2011,
Intevac delivered three 200 Lean systems compargsenty-six 200 Lean systems in 2010 and four [28&n systems in 2009. During fiscal
2011 Intevac recognized the first revenue fronPNsproducts. Intevac recognized revenue on thelfE®\N SOLAR™ deposition system {
crystalline silicon solar (“c-Si”) processing apations. Intevac also sold a LEAN SOLAR systemGopper indium gallium (di)selenide
(“CIGS™) thin film applications whereby revenuelising recognized under the installment method obawting over the next several years.
During fiscal 2011 Intevac also recognized revefnom its semiconductor products. During the firsagter of 2012, Intevac discontinued
offering products to the semiconductor industry aaldl certain assets which comprised its semicdoducainframe technology to Brooks.
Revenues from disk equipment technology upgradéspare parts decreased in 2011 versus 2010 asdrdeustomers delayed equipment
purchases due to the pending industry consolidasowell as reduced need for upgrades in light@iével of new equipment purchased in
fiscal 2010. Revenues from disk equipment technolgegrades and spare parts increased in 2010 v2083s

Equipment revenues in 2012 are expected to be highe 2011 levels due to increased capital spgnayrhard drive customers for
capacity additions and increased revenue from &tswnew PV equipment products. Intevac believasdhce the supply chain constraints
which resulted from the Thailand floods are liftettevac’s customers will need new equipment top-amedia capacity, which will result in
increased demand for Intevac’s equipment. Howéwerause the situation in Thailand is still evolvingcertainty remains regarding the
ultimate impact of this event on the Company. Iategxpects long-term demand for hard disk driveésdease driven by the growth in
digital storage, the need for corporations to epland update employee computers, increased infiemtachnology spending, declining
growth rate in areal density improvements and tioéifpration of personal computers into emergingreamies. The number of disk
manufacturing systems needed to support this groahvary from year to year and is dependent offaitters noted above.

Intevac Photonics revenues decreased by 18.0%8td $2llion in 2011, which consisted of $21.0 nalii of product revenue and $7.1
million of contract R &D revenue. Intevac Photoniesenues of $34.3 million in 2010 consisted of $1@illion of product revenue and
$18.3 million of contract R &D revenue. Intevac Rivocs revenues of $26.6 million in 2009 consisié810.5 million of product revenue
and $16.1 million of contract R &D revenue. Therewse in product revenues in both 2011 and 20LMtedsfrom higher sales of low-light
sensors and cameras used in military night visiwhlang-range imaging as well as commercial apptiog such as Intevac’s neaye displa
products. The decrease in contract R &D reven@®irl was the result of a lower volume of contralcts to the completion of several of
Intevac Photonics’ large development contractit2and delays in U.S. government defense budgebegls. The increase in contract R
&D revenue in 2010 was the result of a higher vaurhicontracts for additional digital night visiapplications. In 2012, Intevac Photonics
revenue is expected to grow as a result of themptan of U.S. government defense spending andaltiee continued expansion of Intevac’
low-light camera and sensor products in militargd aammercial applications. Substantial growth itufa Intevac Photonics revenues is
dependent on the
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proliferation of Intevac’s technology into majorlitary programs, continued defense spending, thidyato obtain export licenses for foreign
customers, obtaining production subcontracts fes¢tprograms, and Intevac’s development and mackeptance of commercial products.

Intevac’s backlog of orders at December 31, 2014 $&2.9 million, as compared to $46.7 million atBmber 31, 2010 and $73.8
million at December 31, 2009. Equipment backloatember 31, 2011 was $17.9 million compared to3&illion at December 31, 2010
and $57.5 million at December 31, 2009. Intevact®ios backlog at December 31, 2011 was $15.0aniliompared to $19.4 million at
December 31, 2010 and $16.3 million at DecembeB809. Equipment backlog at December 31, 2011 isedwone LEAN SOLAR system,
as compared to two 200 Lean systems and two LEANAFOsystems at December 31, 2010, and ten 200 tgstems at December 31,
20009.

Significant portions of Intevac’s revenues in am@ytigular period have been attributable to saleslimited number of customers. In
2011, 2010 and 2009 sales to Seagate and HitaohiaGbtorage Technologies each accounted for rhare20% of Intevac’s revenues. In
addition, in 2010 sales to Fuji Electric accourfiadmore than 10% of Intevac’s revenues. In theregate, sales to these three customers
accounted for 58%, 78% and 58% of revenues in 22010 and 2009 respectively. The magnetic disk rzemwring industry consists of a
small number of large manufacturers. Seagate amjiiaxtor in 2006 and Samsung’s hard disk drivertass in 2011. Western Digital
acquired Komag in 2007, Hoya’s magnetic media daerain 2010 and announced in 2011 that it wijuice Hitachi Global Storage
Technology. All of these transactions further conicted the customer base in the industry.

International sales totaled $54.1 million, $155i0iam, and $39.2 million in 2011, 2010, and 2008spectively, accounting for 65%,
77%, and 50% of net revenues. The decrease imattenal sales in 2011 was primarily due to de@e&s net revenues from disk sputtering
systems, and the increase in international sal281@ was primarily due to increases in net reverfiten disk sputtering systems.
Substantially all of Intevac’s international sa#e to customers in Asia, which includes produbisped to overseas operations of U.S.
companies.

Gross margin

Years Ended December 31,

Change Change
2011 vs. 2010 vs.
2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousands, except percentages)
Equipment gross prof $22,31¢ $79,47: $23,26¢ $(57,159) $56,20¢
% of Equipment net revenu 40.7% 47.2% 45.2%
Intevac Photonics gross pra $ 8,11¢ $ 8,20( $ 9,45¢ $ (87 $(1,259)
% of Intevac Photonics net revent 28.% 23.% 35.6%
Total gross profi $30,43 $87,67: $32,72( $(57,247) $54,95:
% of net revenue 36.7% 43.2% 42.(%

Cost of net revenues consists primarily of purctiasaterials and costs attributable to contract R&mJ also includes assembly, test
and installation labor and overhead, customer-fipesigineering costs, warranty costs, royaltigeyjsions for inventory reserves and scrap.

Equipment gross margin was 40.7% in 2011 compardd 2% in 2010 and 45.3% in 2009. Fiscal 2011gynoargins declined over
fiscal 2010 due to lower volume and unabsorbedfgattilization. Fiscal 2010 gross margins improwser fiscal 2009 due to higher
revenues and improved factory utilization partiaffset by a higher proportion of system shipmewtsich generally have a lower margin
than technology upgrades and spare parts. Groggmaan the Equipment business vary depending mumaber of factors, including product
mix, product cost, system configuration and pricifagtory utilization, and provisions for excesslasolete inventory.

Intevac Photonics gross margin was 28.9% in 20bipewed 23.9% in 2010 and 35.6% in 2009. The inergagross margin in 2011
resulted primarily from improved margins associatétth Intevac Photonics’ high volume digital nighsion production shipments for a
NATO customer and lower warranty provisions. Therdase in gross margin in 2010 resulted primardynflower margins associated w
Intevac Photonicgdigital night vision product, lower margins on c@dt R&D and increased warranty provisions. Manufdag costs for th
digital night vision product decreased in 2011 assalt of cost reductions and yield improvements.
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Research and development

Years Ended December 31,

Change Change
2011 vs. 2010 vs.
2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousands)
Research and development expe $34,28" $27,91¢ $28,06¢ $6,36¢ $ (146)

Research and development expense consists priroasblaries and related costs of employees engagatl prototype materials used
in ongoing research, design and development aetvibr PV cell manufacturing equipment, disk spuitiy equipment, semiconductor
equipment and Intevac Photonics products. Durieditist quarter of 2012, Intevac sold certain assemprising its semiconductor
mainframe technology to Brooks and no longer pemforesearch and development activities for semisttod equipment.

Research and development spending increased fapifagat during 2011 as compared to 2010 and 2008.iddrease in Equipment
spending during 2011 was due primarily to incree®édlevelopment and the inclusion of SIT which wequired in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2010. The decrease in Equipment spendingp@@®010 as compared to 2009 was due primarilyredaction in spending on
semiconductor products.

Research and development spending increased &ranthotonics during 2011 as compared to 201@donarily to an increase in
yield improvement efforts, offset in part by coshtainment efforts. Research and development spgrifticreased for Intevac Photor
during 2010 as compared to 2009 primarily relatedeicreased spending for the digital night visiamera module for Intevac’s military
NATO customer as the product transitioned into pobidn. Research and development expenses doclotdencosts of $4.9 millior
$12.9 million, and $9.1 million, in 2011, 2010, a2@09, respectively, which are related to custofurded contract R&D programs and
therefore included in cost of net revenues.

Selling, general and administrative

Years Ended December 31,

Change Change
2011 vs. 2010 vs.
2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousands)
Selling, general and administrative expe $26,88t $28,51¢ $22,00: $(1,63)) $6,51:

Selling, general and administrative expense canpistnarily of selling, marketing, customer suppéirtancial and management costs.
All domestic sales and international sales of diglattering products in Asia, with the exceptiodapan, are typically made by Intevac’s
direct sales force, whereas sales in Japan ofsgisttering products and other products are typicatide by Intevac’s Japanese distributor,
Matsubo, which also provides services such asliastan, warranty and customer support. Intevacdféises in Singapore, Malaysia, Taiwan
and China to support Intevac’s equipment custonnefsia.

Selling, general and administrative expenses dsete@m 2011 over the amount spent in 2010 due pitina the reduction in variable
compensation accruals offset in part by acquisitelated charges and increased equity compensatjpense. Selling, general and
administrative expense include costs of $1.2 nmlémd $108,000, in 2011 and 2010, respectivelgharges associated with the change ir
fair value of the contingent consideration obligas related to the SIT acquisition. Selling, gehanal administrative expenses increased in
2010 over the amount spent in 2009 due primarilyat@gable compensation, legal expenses associatedhe ARS arbitration and transact
costs associated with the acquisition of SIT, affsgart by lower equity-based compensation expens

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles

At December 31, 2011, Intevac had a total of $b&Mon of goodwill and $4.1 million of indefinitéife intangible assets. Goodwill in
the amount of $10.5 million is attributed to theuonment segment. Goodwill in the amount of $7.9iomilis attributed to the Intevac
Photonics segment. Goodwill and Intevac’s indeditifie intangible assets are tested for impairnoenan annual basis or more frequently
upon the occurrence of circumstances that inditetegoodwill and indefinite life intangible assetiay be impaired. In the fourth quarter of
2011, Intevac performed its 2011 annual assessofé@mipairment which did not result in an
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impairment of goodwill or Intevac’s indefinite lifatangible assets. Intevac’s reporting units foodwill impairment testing purposes are
consistent with the reportable segments: Equiprardtintevac Photonics. Intevac tested goodwilpfassible impairment by first
determining the fair value of the related reportimit and then comparing this value to the recomtetcassets of the reporting unit.

The process of evaluating the potential impairneérgfoodwill is highly subjective and requires siigant judgment. Intevac used two
valuation methodologies to determine the fair vdrats reporting units, with each approach giegual weighting: the income approach and
the market approach. Using the income approactathgalue of each reporting unit was calculateddd on the present value of estimated
future cash flows, which were formed by evaluatigorical trends, current budgets, operating ptarnsindustry data. Estimates of the fu
cash flows associated with the businesses areatriti these assessments. The assumptions udeslfmirtvalue calculation included revenue
growth rates, operating margins, risk adjustedadiat rates and future economic and market conditi@manges in these assumptions based
on changed economic conditions or business steagiuld result in material impairment chargesutare periods. The market approach
looked at the valuations of comparable public comgewhich Intevac selected based upon similarstrihs and products. Intevac then
evaluated the reasonableness of the fair valuelegilons of the reporting units by reconciling tbé&al of the fair values of the two reporting
units to Intevac’s total market capitalization,itakinto account an appropriate control premiuntevac compared the carrying value of the
reporting units to the fair value calculations.

The results of the test for goodwill impairmentca©ctober 1, 2011, showed that the estimated/idires of the Equipment and Inte'
Photonics reporting units exceeded their carryiaiges by more than $15.0 million and $13.0 milli@spectively. There was no impairment
of goodwill recorded during the years ended DecerBthe2011, 2010 and 2009.

Intevac acquired in-process research and develop{fiBR&D"”) of $4.0 million in connection with thacquisition of SIT in November
2010. The fair value of the IPR&D was determinemtigh estimates and valuation techniques basekeotetms of the acquisition. This
IPR&D project is the development of Intevac’s ENBERGonN implantation process technology module fae LEAN SOLAR platform to be
used in the manufacturing of PV solar cells. Integapects to complete development on this projettié second half of fiscal 2012. Upon
completion of development and establishment ofrteldyical feasibility, Intevac will determine anddin amortization of the acquired
IPR&D over its useful life.

In conjunction with the annual impairment reviehe iCompany assessed the valuation of the IPR&D fran8IT acquisition. For
IPR&D, the review involved determining the presealue of future cash flows from the resulting prodbased on estimates, judgments, and
assumptions that management believes are app®foiathe circumstances. Based upon updated marsaggmojections related to the
IPR&D and on a discounted cash flow model, Intedatermined the fair value of the IPR&D exceededdtsying value.

Intevac also performed the annual impairment re\aéwa tradename, an indefinite life intangible &sdering the fourth quarter of 2011
using a discounted cash flow model and the refi@fafroyalty method. Based on this review, Intevatedmined the fair value of the
tradename exceeded its carrying value.

Intevac will continue to evaluate the carrying \eabf goodwill and intangible assets and if it isedlmined that there is a potential
impairment, Intevac may record additional chargb&tvwould adversely affect its financial resufisr further details, see Note 6 of Note:
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interest income and other, net

Years Ended December 31,

Change Change
2011 vs. 2010 vs.
2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousands)
Interest income and other, r $ 63% $ T7% $1,25¢ $ (13€) $ (48))

Interest income and other, net in 2011 included7$320 of interest income on investments and a ga$#109,000 related to the sale of
fixed assets partially offset by $308,000 in readizosses on the sale of ARS that were sold tistheers at less than par value as part of te
offers and $32,000 of foreign currency losses.
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Interest income and other, net in 2010 include®¥3¥0 of interest income on investments, a gab4@1,000 related to the remeasureme
Intevac’s pre-acquisition equity interest in SITtla acquisition-date fair value, partially offégt$520,000 of foreign currency losses and
$87,000 in net other expense. Interest income #ret,anet in 2009 included $1.4 million of interestome on investments and $134,000 in
net other income, partially offset by $226,000a®ign currency losses and $16,000 in interestresg€elhe decreases in interest income in
2011 and 2010 were driven by lower interest ratektevac’s investments.

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes

Years Ended December 31,

Change Change
2011 vs. 2010 vs.
2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousands)
Provision for (benefit from) income tax $(8,137) $3,96: $(6,01¢) $(12,099) $9,97¢

Intevac’s effective income tax provision rate was026 for fiscal 2011, 12.4% for fiscal 2010, and43% for fiscal 2009. Intevac’s tax
rate differs from the applicable statutory rates grimarily to the utilization of deferred and enit credits and the effect of permanent
differences and adjustments of prior permanenedifices. Intevac’s future effective income tax cegends on various factors including, the
level of Intevac’s projected earnings, the geogi@pbmposition of worldwide earnings, tax regulaggoverning each region, net operating
loss carryforwards, availability of tax credits ahe effectiveness of Intevac’s tax planning sgiege. Management carefully monitors these
factors and timely adjusts the effective incomertte accordingly.

Intevac enjoys a tax holiday in Singapore throdghtax years ending in 2015. The tax holiday presid lower income tax rate on
certain classes of income and the agreement reqthia¢ certain thresholds of business investmetheanployment levels be met in Singapore
in order to maintain this holiday.

As of December 31, 2011, on a worldwide basis kmtavas recorded a net deferred tax asset of $2Bi@nmThe realization of the
deferred tax assets is primarily dependent on &g@enerating sufficient U.S. and foreign taxabt®me in future fiscal years. Management
believes that sufficient positive evidence existsf historical operations and projections of tagahtome in future years to conclude that
more likely than not that the Company will realitedeferred tax assets. Management believeshbataluation allowances for Intevac’s
deferred tax assets are adequate based on seaaakfincluding: (1) degree to which Intevac’s 2@hd 2009 losses were attributable to
unusual items or charges; (2) long duration oflatés deferred tax assets; and (3) expectatiompfaved earnings in the long term.

During 2009, Intevac established an additional atdun allowance to fully reserve its Californiatstdeferred tax assets due to the
impact of California tax legislation that was ermatin February 2009. This additional valuation\aomce decreased the income tax benef
$1.0 million. Intevac recognized the effect of teange in valuation allowance as a discrete item.

Business Combinations

On November 19, 2010, Intevac acquired the outstgrghares of Solar Implant Technologies, Inc. T"pla privately-owned,
development stage company, developing an ion impteralule to be used in the manufacturing of PVrsoddls. Intevac’s primary reasons
for this acquisition were to complement its exigtproduct offerings and to provide opportunitiesfidure growth. The preliminary aggreg
purchase price was $12.4 million, which consistedminitial cash payment totaling $2.7 million atwhtingent consideration obligations
with a fair value of $9.7 million payable in casfised on the achievement of certain product devedopmilestones achieved over a speci
period and revenue earnout on Intevac’s net revéoue commercial sales of certain products achiemest a specified period. On July 21,
2011, Intevac made $2.4 million in payments tosbking shareholders for achievement of the firdéstone.

For further details, see Note 7 of Notes to Codsdéid Financial Statements.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Stassl&oard (“FASB”) issued authoritative guidancet tillows entities to first assess
qualitatively whether it is necessary to perform tlvo-step goodwill impairment test. If an entiglibves, as a result of its qualitative
assessment, that it is more likely than not thatféiir value of a reporting unit is less than &srging amount, the quantitative two-step
goodwill impairment test is required. An entity hhe unconditional option to bypass the qualitatiseessment and proceed directly to
performing the first step of the goodwill impairntéest. The guidance is effective for annual artdrim goodwill impairment tests perform
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2@lifh early adoption permitted. Intevac does nqtext the adoption of these provisions to
have a significant effect on its consolidated fitiahstatements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued authoritative guidahat amends the presentation requirements fopedrensive income in financial
statements. The guidance requires entities to repanponents of comprehensive income either asgparsingle continuous statement of
comprehensive income that would combine the compisnaf net income and other comprehensive incomig, @ separate, but consecutive,
statement following the statement of income. Thid@nce is effective for interim and annual peribdginning after December 15, 2011 and
is to be applied retrospectively. Intevac doesexgiect the adoption of these provisions to havgrafieant effect on its consolidated financ
statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued authoritative guidatihet amends the existing requirements for faingaheasurement and
disclosure. The guidance expands the disclosurgreagents around fair value measurements categbinzievel 3 of the fair value hierarc
and requires disclosure of the level in the falugéhierarchy of items that are not measured awtdue in the statement of financial position
but whose fair value must be disclosed. It alsdfeda and expands upon existing requirements feasarement of the fair value of financial
assets and liabilities as well as instruments ifiadsn stockholders’ equity. The guidance is effee for interim and annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2011. Intevac doegxjpect the adoption of these provisions to hasigificant effect on its consolidated
financial statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2011, Intevac had $114.8 millionash, cash equivalents, and investments compau®&tB7.4 million at
December 31, 2010. During fiscal 2011, cash, cgsilivalents and investments decreased by $22.6omitlue primarily to cash used by
operating activities, payment of acquisiticelated contingent consideration and purchaseiged fassets partially offset by cash received
the sale of Intevac common stock to Intevac’s eygas through Intevac’s employee benefit plans.

Cash, cash equivalents and investments consieedbtlowing:

December 31 December 31
2011 2010
(In thousands)
Cash and cash equivalel $ 23,56( $ 109,52(
Shor-term investment 58,58¢ 4,994
Long-term investment 32,675 22,86¢
Total cash, cas-equivalents and investmer $ 114,82: $ 137,38(

Cash used by operating activities totaled $16.8aniin 2011. Cash generated by operating actwiti¢aled $51.3 million in 2010. Ce
used by operating activities totaled $16.6 millior2009. Lower operating cash flow in 2011 wasslteof the net loss adjusted to exclude
the effect of non-cash charges including, depriciaamortization, changes in the fair value ofiasigion-related contingent consideration
and equity-based compensation. This decrease nfiaa operating activities was partially offset dlyanges in working capital. Intevac
continues to carefully manage working capital.

Accounts receivable totaled $18.6 million at Decentil, 2011 compared to $25.9 million at Decemtiie2810. The number of days
outstanding for Intevac’s accounts receivable wlhat®ecember 31, 2011 compared to 62 at Decenih@030. The decrease in the
receivable balance was due
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primarily to lower business levels. The increasdags outstanding was due primarily to lower bussrlevels and customer deposits billed
late in 2011. Net inventories totaled $18.1 millatrDecember 31, 2011 compared to $20.7 milliddestember 31, 2010. Inventory turns
were 2.7 in fiscal 2011 compared to 5.8 in fisd@@l@ The decrease in the inventory balance andehbkne in turns were due primarily to
lower manufacturing activities. Accounts payablaled $4.9 million at December 31, 2011 compare®bté million at December 31, 2010.
The decrease of $705,000 relates to the decreasedntory purchases as a result of lower busitesds. Accrued payroll and related
liabilities decreased by $7.2 million during 2001$4.2 million primarily related to payment of 2066nuses and profit sharing. Customer
advances increased from $4.9 million at DecembgB310 to $5.1 million at December 31, 2011.

Investing activities used cash of $70.2 millior2Bil1, generated cash of $37.7 million in 2010, @aset cash of $4.1 million in 2009. In
2011, purchases of investments, net of proceeds $ales and maturities, totaled $64.9 million. 01@, proceeds from sales and maturitie
investments, net of purchases, totaled $47.4 millio 2009, purchases of investments, net of pde&®m sales and maturities, totaled $1.5
million. During 2010, Intevac acquired the outstiagdshares of SIT for a preliminary aggregate pasehprice of $12.4 million, which
consisted of an initial cash payment totaling $8illion and a contingent consideration obligatioithwa fair value of $9.7 million payable in
cash.

Financing activities generated cash of $535,00Dihl and $2.9 million in 2010, and used cash oBBW in 2009. In connection with
the acquisition of SIT, Intevac agreed to pay uprtaggregate of $7.0 million in cash to the sgl8hareholders if certain milestones are
achieved over a specified period. On July 21, 20iteyac made $2.4 million in payments to the sglhareholders of SIT for achievement
of the first milestone. Subsequent to the SIT &gitjan, Intevac paid in full $177,000 in notes plalgato certain selling shareholders assumed
upon the acquisition. In 2009, Intevac made a saleeldpayment of $2.0 million to the former ownefPeltaNu. The sale of Intevac
common stock to Intevac’s employees through Intsvamployee benefit plans provided $2.9 millior2Bi1, $2.8 million in 2010, and $1.1
million in 2009. On January 6, 2012, the Comparlg sertain assets which comprised its semiconduntnframe technology for $3.0
million in cash to Brooks Automation Inc. (“BrooRs”

Intevac’s investment portfolio consists principadliyinvestment grade money market mutual funds,G~iDkured corporate bonds, U.S.
Treasury and agency securities, commercial papenjaipal bonds, corporate bonds and variable rateathd notes (“VRDNSs"). Intevac
regularly monitors the credit risk in its investrh@ortfolio and takes measures, which may incligesiale of certain securities, to manage
such risks in accordance with its investment petici

As of December 31, 2011, Intevac’s available-fde-securities included $4.9 million par value o€ton rate securities (“ARS”), less a
temporary valuation adjustment of $410,000 to wefleeir current lack of liquidity. Management lesies that the impairment of the ARS
investments is temporary. Due to current marketlitmms, these investments have experienced failetions beginning in mid-February
2008. These failed auctions result in a lack afitiéty in the securities, but do not affect the arying collateral of the securities. Intevac ¢
not anticipate that any potential lack of liquiditythese ARS will affect its ability to financesibperations and planned capital expenditures.
Intevac continues to monitor efforts by the finahenarkets to find alternative means for restothgliquidity of these investments. These
investments are classified as non-current asséitdntevac has better visibility as to when thiguidity will be restored. The classification
and valuation of these securities will continud#oreviewed quarterly. During 2011, Intevac papt¢ed in three tender offers, sold ARS with
par values of $5.5 million, collected $5.2 milliand recognized realized losses on the sales of @308Additionally, during 2011, $500,000
of ARS were redeemed at par.

As described in Note 8 of Notes to Consolidatechiramal Statements, the fair value of the ARS wésesed at $4.5 million using
discounted cash flow models. The estimates of éutaish flows are based on certain key assumpsaoh,as discount rates appropriate for
the type of asset and risk, which are significarihservable inputs. There was insufficient obsdevatarket information for the ARS held
Intevac to determine the fair value. Therefore IL&vir values were estimated for these securliieBcorporating assumptions that market
participants would use in their estimates of failue. Some of these assumptions included credittgueollateralization, final stated maturi
estimates of the probability of being called ordraing liquid prior to final maturity, redemption$ ©imilar ARS, previous market activity for
the same investment security, impact due to extbpdeiods of maximum auction rates and valuatiodeis
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On July 27, 2010, as a result of a favorable ruliogn the Financial Industry Regulatory Authoritypdration panel, Intevac received
$54.8 million from the repurchase of by Citigroupeeviously held ARS at par including interest.

As of December 31, 2011, approximately $10.9 millad cash and cash equivalents and $17.6 millianwdstments were domiciled in
foreign tax jurisdictions. Intevac expects a siguaifit portion of these funds to remain off shoréhim short term. If the Company chose to
repatriate these funds to the United States, itldvba required to accrue and pay additional taxeary portion of the repatriation where no
United States income tax had been previously peakid

Intevac believes that Intevac’s existing cash, @glivalents and investments will be sufficientrteet Intevac’s cash requirements for
the next 12 months. Intevac intends to undertakecgmately $5.0—$6.0 million in capital expendesrduring the next 12 months.

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes Intevac’s contrattldigations as of December 31, 2011:

Payments due by period

Total <1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years

(in thousands)
Operating lease obligatiol $10,23¢ $ 2,347 $ 3,94¢ $ 3,541 $ 401
Purchase obligations and commitment: 8,521 8,521 — — —
Other lon¢-term liabilities(2, 4) 95¢ 95¢ — — —
Total(3, 4) $19,71: $11,82¢ $ 3,94¢ $ 3,541 $ 401

(1) Purchase obligations include agreements tohases goods or services that are enforceable aatiyidéinding on Intevac and that specify
all significant terms, including fixed or minimunuantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or vdgalyice provisions; and the
approximate timing of the transaction. Purchaséatibns exclude agreements that are cancelabfmutipenalty. These purchase
obligations are related principally to inventorydasther items

(2) Intevac is unable to reliably estimate the tignof future payments related to uncertain taxtpms; therefore, $4.2 million of
unrecognized tax benefits has been excluded frentathle above

(3) Total excludes contractual obligations alreegtyorded on the consolidated balance sheet amtliakilities (except other long-term
liabilities) and certain purchase obligatio

(4) Total excludes contingent consideration that mapdid pursuant to asset purchases or business catiunis.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2011, Intevac did not have aatenal off-balance sheet arrangements (as defimmddm 303(a)(4)(ii) of
Regulation S-K).

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial statemant related disclosures in conformity with acdimgnprinciples generally accepted
in the United States of America requires manageiteemake judgments, assumptions and estimatestfieat the amounts reported. Note 1
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements @esgthe significant accounting policies used mpheparation of the consolidated finan
statements. Certain of these significant accounioligies are considered to be critical accounpalicies.

A critical accounting policy is defined as one ttsaboth material to the presentation of Intevatesolidated financial statements and
requires management to make difficult, subjectiveamplex judgments that could have a materialcefb@ Intevac’s financial condition or
results of operations. Specifically, these
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policies have the following attributes: (1) Intevacequired to make assumptions about mattersatieatighly uncertain at the time of the
estimate; and (2) different estimates Intevac coedédonably have used, or changes in the estilmagtarte reasonably likely to occur, would
have a material effect on Intevac’s financial cdindior results of operations.

Estimates and assumptions about future eventshamdeffects cannot be determined with certaintjevac bases its estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumgtbelieved to be applicable and reasonable uhdaircumstances. These estimates may
change as new events occur, as additional infoomasi obtained and as Intevac’s operating envirgriroleanges. These changes have
historically been minor and have been included&donsolidated financial statements as soon gdeame known. In addition,
management is periodically faced with uncertainties outcomes of which are not within its conaotl will not be known for prolonged
periods of time. These uncertainties are discusstte section above entitled “Risk Factors.” Basadh critical assessment of its accounting
policies and the underlying judgments and unceiegraffecting the application of those policiegmagement believes that Intevac’s
consolidated financial statements are fairly statebcordance with accounting principles generatlgepted in the United States of America,
and provide a meaningful presentation of Intevéioancial condition and results of operations.

Management believes that the following are crite@atounting policies:

Revenue Recognition

Intevac recognizes revenue when persuasive eviddraearrangement exists, delivery has occurreltile and risk of loss have
passed to Intevac’s customer or services have legeiered, the price is fixed or determinable, asibbctibility is reasonably assured.
Intevac’s shipping terms are customarily FOB shiggdoint or equivalent terms. Intevac’s revenu@gedion policy generally results in
revenue recognition at the following points: (1) &l transactions where legal title passes toctitomer upon shipment, Intevac recognizes
revenue upon shipment for all products that hawslseemonstrated to meet product specifications pishipment; the portion of revenue
associated with certain installation-related taskdeferred, and that revenue is recognized upomptation of the installation-related tasks;

(2) for products that have not been demonstratedeet product specifications prior to shipmenterawe is recognized at customer
acceptance; and (3) for arrangements containingjpfeielements, the revenue relating to the undedig elements is deferred until deliver
the deferred elements. When a sales arrangemetatim®@multiple elements, Intevac allocates revdnwEach element based on a selling
hierarchy. The selling price for a deliverable &séd on its vendor specific evidence (“VSOE") idable, third party evidence (“TPE") if
VSOE is not available, or best estimate of selprige (“ESP”) if neither VSOE nor TPE is availabletevac generally utilizes the ESP due to
the nature of its products. In certain cases, telclyy upgrade sales are accounted for as multipl@ent arrangements, usually split between
delivery of the parts and installation on the cos0s systems. In these cases, Intevac recogrexesue for the relative sales price of the
parts upon shipment and transfer of title, andgatzes revenue for the relative sales price ofitatton services when those services are
completed. Revenue related to sales of spare igagenerally recognized upon shipment. Revenuéeta services is generally recognized
upon completion of the services. In addition, latewuses the installment method to record revensedoan cash receipts in situations where
the account receivable is collected over an extépdeiod of time and in management’s judgment #greke of collectibility is uncertain.

Intevac performs research and development workwatégous government-sponsored research contidetgenue on cost-plus-fee
contracts is recognized to the extent of costsadlgtincurred plus a proportionate amount of the éarned. Intevac considers fixed fees under
cost-plus-fee contracts to be earned in propottbahe allowable costs actually incurred in perfanme of the contract. Revenue on fixed-
price contracts is recognized on a milestone metiguercentage-of-completion method of contracbanting. For contracts structured as
milestone agreements, revenue is recognized wispedcfied milestone is achieved, provided thatlig#)milestone event is substantive in
nature and there is substantial uncertainty alieutithievement of the milestone at the inceptiath@fgreement, (2) the milestone payment
is non-refundable, and (3) there is no continuiaggrmance obligations associated with the milesfoslyment. Any milestone payments
received prior to satisfying these revenue recammnitriteria are deferred. Intevac generally deteem the percentage completed based on the
percentage of costs incurred to date in relaticota estimated costs expected through completidhe contract. When estimates of total
costs to be incurred on a contract exceed estinohtesal revenue to be earned, a provision forehtire loss on the contract is recorded in
period the loss is determined.
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Inventories

Inventories are valued using average actual cost@ee stated at the lower of cost or market. Ereying value of inventory is reduced
for estimated obsolescence by the difference bethiteeost and the estimated market value based agsumptions about future demand.
Intevac evaluates the inventory carrying valuepfatiential excess and obsolete inventory exposwyresmdblyzing historical and anticipated
demand. In addition, inventories are evaluategiential obsolescence due to the effect of knomchamnticipated engineering change orders
and new products. If actual demand were to be anbatly lower than estimated, additional inventadjustments for excess or obsolete
inventory might be required, which could have aariat adverse effect on Intevac’s business, fireraindition and results of operations.

Warranty

Intevac estimates the costs that may be incurrddrnuthie warranty it provides and records a liapilitthe amount of such costs at the
time the related revenue is recognized. Estimatauanty costs are determined by analyzing spegifiduct and historical configuration
statistics and regional warranty support costeviat’s warranty obligation is affected by prodwhure rates, material usage, and labor costs
incurred in correcting product failures during tharranty period. As Intevac’s customer service eegis and process support engineers are
highly trained and deployed globally, labor availiabis a significant factor in determining laboosts. The quantity and availability of criti
replacement parts is another significant factarstimating warranty costs. Unforeseen componehirés or exceptional component
performance can also result in changes to warredts. If actual warranty costs differ substantifdbm our estimates, revisions to the
estimated warranty liability would be required.

Income Taxes

Intevac accounts for income taxes by recognizirfgrded tax assets and liabilities using enacteddtes for the effect of temporary
differences between the book and tax bases ofdedmssets and liabilities, net operating lossdgancredit carryforwards. Deferred tax
assets are also reduced by a valuation allowarntisimore likely than not that a portion of theférred tax asset will not be realized.
Management has determined that it is more likednthot that its future taxable income will be stifint to realize its deferred tax assets.

The effective tax rate is highly dependent upongibegraphic composition of worldwide earnings, fegulations governing each
region, non-tax deductible expenses and availghifitax credits. Management carefully monitors ¢hanges in many factors and adjusts the
effective income tax rate as required. If actualites differ from these estimates, Intevac coulddsgiired to record a valuation allowance on
deferred tax assets or adjust its effective inctameate, which could have a material adverse effedntevac’s business, financial condition
and results of operations.

The calculation of tax liabilities involves sigmifint judgment in estimating the impact of uncettain the application of complex tax
laws. Resolution of these uncertainties in a maimeamsistent with Intevac’s expectations couldéhavmaterial impact on Intevad'esults ¢
operations and financial condition.

Valuation of IPR&D, Contingent Consideration, Goodllvand Other Intangible Assets

The purchase price of an acquired business isa#idc as applicable, between in-process reseactearelopment (“IPR&D”), other
identifiable intangible assets, net tangible asaptsgoodwill. IPR&D is defined as the value asswjto those projects for which the related
products have no alternative future use. Deterrgittie portion of the purchase price allocated ®&P and other intangible assets requires
the Company to make significant estimates. The amoiuthe purchase price allocated to IPR&D andpthtangible assets is determined by
estimating the future cash flows of each projedechnology and discounting the net cash flows ladkeir present values. The discount
used is determined at the time of the acquisitioadcordance with accepted valuation methods. FR&D, these valuation methodologies
include consideration of the risk of the project achieving commercial feasibility.

Contingent consideration is recorded at the actipiisdate at the estimated fair value of the cagdirt payments. The acquisition date
fair value is measured based on the consideratipaated to be transferred (probability-weighted§cdunted back to present value. The
discount rate used is determined at the time of the
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acquisition in accordance with accepted valuati@thmds. The fair value of the contingent considenat remeasured at the estimated fair
value at each reporting period with the changeaiinvalue recognized as income or expense in theatimated statements of operations.

Gooduwill represents the excess of the aggregatehpse price over the fair value of net assetsydicy IPR&D, of acquired business
Intevac’s methodology for allocating the purchaseeprelating to purchase acquisitions is deterahitheough established and generally
accepted valuation techniques. Goodwill is measaseithe excess of the cost of the acquisition thesum of the amounts assigned to
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acgliiess liabilities assumed. Intevac assigns assefsired (including goodwill) and liabilities
assumed to a reporting unit as of the date of adapn.

Goodwill and purchased intangible assets with iimitef useful lives are not amortized, but are rexdd for impairment annually during
the fourth quarter of each fiscal year and whenevents or changes in circumstances indicate leatdrrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable. For goodwill, Intevac performs a twepsmpairment test. In the first step, Intevac pames the fair value of each reporting unit
to its carrying value. Intevac’s reporting unite aonsistent with the reportable segments idedtifieNote 12, based on the manner in which
Intevac operates its business and the nature séthperations. Depending on the facts and circumostalntevac determines the fair value of
each of its reporting units based upon the mostagpiate valuation technique using the income apghpthe market approach or a
combination thereof. The income and market appreselere selected as management believes theseaappsagenerally provide the most
reliable indications of fair value when the valdehe operations is more dependent on the abiityenerate earnings than on the value of the
assets used in the production process. Under tloenia approach Intevac calculates the fair valueefeporting units based on the present
value of estimated future cash flows. Under theketaapproach Intevac estimates the fair value basedarket multiples of revenue or
earnings for comparable companies. Each valuatiomique has advantages and drawbacks, which raustrisidered when applying those
techniques. The income approach closely corretateganagement’s expectations of future resultgdmuires significant assumptions which
can be highly sensitive. The market approach atixaly straightforward to measure, but it may Béallt to find directly comparable
companies in the marketplace. If the fair valu¢hefreporting unit exceeds the carrying value efrtht assets assigned to that unit, goodwiill
is not impaired and no further testing is perforréthe carrying value of the net assets assidgogbe reporting unit exceeds the fair value of
the reporting unit, then Intevac would perform sieeond step of the impairment test in order tordete the implied fair value of the
reporting unit's goodwill. If the carrying value afreporting unit's goodwill exceeds its impliedr faalue, Intevac would record an
impairment loss equal to the difference. No impaintncharges were recognized in fiscal 2011, 20H2&09.

Equity-Based Compensation

Intevac records compensation expense for equitgebawards under Accounting Standards Codificatié®C”) 718, “Compensation-
Stock Compensation”, using the Black-Scholes oppiacing model. This model requires Intevac toraste the expected volatility of the
price of Intevac’s common stock and the expectieddli the equity-based awards. ASC 718 also regtiodeiture estimates of equity-based
awards. Estimating volatility, expected life andféitures requires significant judgment and an wsialof historical data. Intevac may have to
increase or decrease compensation expense foydmpsed awards if actual results differ signifitaftom Intevac’s estimates.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Interest rate risk. Intevac’s exposure to market risk for changeisterest rates relates primarily to its investtrportfolio. Intevac
does not use derivative financial instruments tevac’s investment portfolio. The Company has agldjgin investment policy and established
guidelines relating to credit quality, diversificat and maturities of its investments in order tesgrve principal and maintain liquidity. All
investment securities in Intevac’s portfolio haveimvestment grade credit rating. Investments sipicconsist of commercial paper, FDIC
insured corporate bonds, obligations of the U.Segament and its agencies, corporate debt se@jntianicipal bonds, VRDNs and ARS.
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The table below presents principal amounts ande@laeighted-average interest rates by year of@gdematurity for Intevac’s
investment portfolio at December 31, 2011.

Fair
2012 2013 201¢ 201t 201¢ Beyond Total Value
(In thousands, except percentages)
Cash equivalent
Fixed rate amouni $ 4,447 — — — — — $ 4447 $ 4,447
Weightec-average rat 0.44% — — — — —
Variable rate amoun $ 4,84t — — — — — $ 4,84t $ 4,84f
Weightec-average rat 0.11% — — — — —
Shor-term investment
Fixed rate amount $54,64¢ — — — — — $ 54,64¢ $ 54,68t¢
Weightec-average rat 3.01% — — — — —
Variable rate amoun $ 3,89 — — — — — $ 3,897 $ 3,891
Weightec-average rat 0.28% — — — — —
Long-term investment
Fixed rate amount — $28,22" — — —  $4,90C $ 33,127 $ 32,67;
Weightec-average rat — 211% — — — 1.4(%
Total investment portfoli $67,83¢ $28,22" — — —  $4,90C $100,96!  $100,55-

At December 31, 2011, Intevac held investmentsRB8AWith the liquidity issues experienced in glotr&dit and capital markets,
Intevac's ARS have experienced multiple failed auns. Intevac continues to earn interest at theimam contractual rate for each security.
The estimated values of the ARS held by Intevagarknger at par. As of December 31, 2011, Intdwat $4.5 million in ARS in the
consolidated balance sheet, which is net of analizegl loss of $410,000. The unrealized loss ikighed in other comprehensive income, as
the decline in value is deemed to be temporarypdimearily to Intevac’s ability and intent to holddase securities long enough to recover their
values and that it is more likely than not thaeirsic would not be required to sell these ARS bafecevery in their par values.

Intevac continues to monitor the market for ARS aodsider its impact (if any) on the fair markelueaof its investments. If the curre
market conditions continue, or the anticipated vecp in market values does not occur, Intevac negelguired to record additional
unrealized losses or record an impairment char@®1r2.

Based on Intevac’s ability to access its castexfected operating cash flows, and other sourceadif, Intevac does not anticipate that
the lack of liquidity of these investments will @t Intevac’s ability to operate its business mdhdinary course.

Foreign exchange risk. From time to time, Intevac enters into fore@mrency forward exchange contracts to economidabjge
certain of Intevac’s anticipated foreign curren@nsaction, translation and re-measurement exp@siine objective of these contracts is to
minimize the impact of foreign currency exchange rmaovements on Intevac’s operating results. Irtdnzal no foreign currency forward
exchange contracts during any of the years endedrleer 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Intevac, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Intevac, Inc. (a Delaware corporatmil) subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Company”) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 the related consolidated statements of operatgtoskholders’ equity and
comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows fon efithe three years in the period ended Decembe2@®L1. Our audits of the basic
financial statements included the financial stateinsehedule listed in the index appearing unden i&(a)(2). These financial statements and
financial statement schedule are the responsilufithe Company management. Our responsibility is to expresspaman on these financi
statements and financial statement schedule basedraaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegaferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of
Intevac, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 811 2nd 2010 and the results of their operatiodstfagir cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2011 inocariy with accounting principles generally accepite the United States of Americ
Also in our opinion, the related financial statemnschedule, when considered in relation to thecbfasancial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the infation set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2011, based on criteria estadiininternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrise Treadway Commission (COSO) and our repateéd February 21,
2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on the affesess of the Company’s internal control overfiicial reporting.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California
February 21, 2012

38



INTEVAC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Current asset:

Cash and cash equivalel

Shor-term investment

Trade, notes and other accounts receivable, radtaafances of $41 and $55 at December 31, 2012amd,

respectively

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Deferred income tax asse¢
Total current asse
Property, plant and equipment, |
Long-term investment
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net of amortization 08%2,and $1,801 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, cspy
Deferred income taxes and other I-term asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued payroll and related liabilitit
Other accrued liabilitie
Customer advance
Total current liabilities
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:
Undesignated preferred stock, $0.001 par valu®000shares authorized, no shares issued and adlitei:
Common stock, $0.001 par valu

Authorized shares — 50,000 issued and outstandiiages — 23,122 and 22,558 at December 31, 2011 and

2010, respectivel
Additional paic-in-capital
Accumulated other comprehensive inca
Retained earning
Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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December 31,

2011 2010
(In thousands, except par
value)
$ 23,56(  $109,52(

58,58¢ 4,99
18,56! 25,91
18,07( 20,67
7,114 6,63(
2,20z 3,12¢
128,09: 170,85(
14,44¢ 13,91¢
32,675 22,86¢
18,38¢ 18,38¢
6,441 6,98¢
25,77: 18,76¢
$225,82:  $251,77:
$ 48571 $ 5,562
4,208 11,36¢
9,88 11,10¢
5,04( 4,86
23,98¢ 32,89¢
9,922 11,63(

23 23
146,30° 139,82
414 25E
45,16¢ 67,14:
191,91 207,24
$225,82:  $251,77:




Net revenues
Systems and componel
Technology developmel
Total net revenue
Cost of net revenue
Systems and componel
Technology developmel
Total cost of net revenut
Gross profit
Operating expense
Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrati
Total operating expens
Operating income (lost
Interest incom
Other income (expense), r
Income (loss) before income tax
Provision (benefit) for income tax
Net income (loss

Net income (loss) per shal
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average shares outstand
Basic
Diluted

INTEVAC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

2011

2010

2009

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

$7585(  $18421  $ 61,89
7,12¢ 18,30¢ 16,08¢
82,97 202,52 77,98
47,60 101,97 36,17:
4,94z 12,87¢ 9,08¢
52,54: 114,85. 45,26
30,43 87,67: 32,72
34,28 27,91¢ 28,06«
26,88t 28,51¢ 22,00
61,17: 56,43 50,06’
(30,747) 31,23¢ (17,34

847 89¢ 1,367
(212) (12€) (10

(30,106) 32,01 (16,099
(8,131) 3,96: (6,016)

$(21,97) $ 28,04¢  $(10,07)

$ (099 $ 126 $ (0.4

$ (099 $ 12 $ (0.4
22,90: 22,34( 21,97
22,90: 22,97 21,97

See accompanying notes.
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INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Balance at December 31, 2008

Shares issued in connection wi
Exercise of stock optior
Employee stock purchase pl
Income tax benefits realized from activity
in employee stock plar
Equity-based compensation expel
Net loss
Unrealized gain on securities held as avail-for-sale
Deferred taxes on unrealized gain on availablestde-
securities
Foreign currency translation adjustm

Comprehensive los

Balance at December 31, 2C

Shares issued in connection wi
Exercise of stock optior
Employee stock purchase pl

Net income tax detriment from activity in employseck
plans

Equity-based compensation expel

Net income

Unrealized gain on securities held as avail-for-sale

Deferred taxes on unrealized gain on availablestde-
securities

Foreign currency translation adjustm

Comprehensive incorr

Balance at December 31, 2C

Shares issued in connection wi
Exercise of stock optior
Employee stock purchase pl

Net income tax detriment from activity in employsteck
plans

Equity-based compensation expel

Net loss

Unrealized gain on securities held as avail-for-sale

Deferred taxes on unrealized gain on availableséde-
securities

Foreign currency translation adjustm

Comprehensive los

Balance at December 31, 2C

See accompanying notes.

(In thousands)

Common Stock

Accumulated
Other

Total

Additional Comprehensive Stockholders’
Paid-In Retained

Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Equity
21,80 $ 22 $12868t $ (4,80¢) $49,16¢ $ 173,06
34 — 22¢ — — 22¢
24C — 89¢ — — 89¢
— — 69 — — 69
— — 4,19¢ — — 4,19¢
— — — — (10,07 (10,077
— — — 4,371 — 4,371
— — — (1,529 — (1,529
— — — 13¢€ — 13€
(7,097
22,07¢ $ 22 $134,07. % (1,82¢) $39,09: $ 171,35
224 1 1,74( — — 1,741
25E — 1,027 — — 1,027
— — (279) — — (279)
— — 3,26t — — 3,26t
— — — — 28,04¢ 28,04¢
— — — 3,07z — 3,07z
_ — — (1,075) — (1,079
— — — 86 — 86
30,13:
2255¢ $ 23 $13982: $ 25t $67,14. $ 207,24
33C — 1,53¢ — — 1,53¢
234 — 1,38¢ — — 1,38¢
— — (477 — — (471
— — 4,03( — — 4,03(
— — — — (21,97 (21,979
— — — 217 217
— — — (76) — (76)
— — — 18 — 18
(21,816
23,12 $ 23 $146,30 $ 414 $45,16¢ $ 191,91
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INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Operating activities
Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @esthcand cash equivalents provided by (usec

operating activities
Depreciation & amortizatio
Net amortization (accretion) of investment premiwand discount
Loss on sale of investmer
Gain on acquisitiol
Amortization of intangible asse
Equity-based compensatic
Deferred income taxe
Excess tax benefits from eqi-based compensatic

Change in the fair value of acquisit-related contingent considerati

Loss(gain) on disposal of equipme
Changes in assets and liabiliti

Accounts receivabl

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as

Accounts payabl

Accrued payroll and other accrued liabilit

Customer advance
Total adjustment
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (useopi@jating activitie:
Investing activities
Purchase of investmer
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investnr
Acquisition of SIT, net of cash acquir
Proceeds from sale of equipm
Purchase of equipme
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (usedve}ting activities
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common si
Payment of acquisitic-related contingent considerati
Payment of notes payable assumed upon SIT acqgui
Repayment of note payat
Excess tax benefits from eqi-based compensatic
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (usethamcing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe
Cash paid (received) fc

Income taxe:
Income tax refuns

See accompanying notes.
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Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
$ (21,979  $28,04¢  $(10,07)
4,88( 5,307 5,031
1,40¢ — (20)
30¢ — —
— (481) —
54z 554 554
4,03 3,31¢ 4,25¢
(7,140) (2,142 (87)
— (29¢) (69)
1,247 10¢ —
(78) 152 57
7,35( 18,84¢ (28,93%)
2,601 (1,555) (1,417)
87 (2,665) (3,177)
(70E) 45¢ 441
(9,009) 9,987 6,90-
17¢ (8,319 9,967
5,69¢ 23,26¢ (6,497)
(16,279 51,31 (16,569
(111,940 (20,68) (26,979
47,03¢ 68,05( 25,45(
— (2,63¢) —
24¢ — —
(5,582) (7,055) (2,615)
(70,232 37,67« (4,142)
2,92¢ 2,76¢ 1,122
(2,389 — —
— 177) —
— — (2,000)
— 29¢ 69
53t 2,89( (809
18 50 (87)
(85,96() 91,92¢ (21,609
109,52 17,59: 39,20
$ 2356(  $109,52(  $17,59:
$ 33 $ 1,82¢ § 71c
$ (683 $ (481) $ (2,82)



INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentati

The consolidated financial statements include tu®ants of Intevac, Inc. and its subsidiaries (tateor the Company) after eliminati
of inter-company balances and transactions.

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assas it affect the amounts reported in the conatdiifinancial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differemiatly from those estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Intevac considers all highly liquid investmentshwatriginal maturities of three months or less wparchased to be cash equivalents.
Available-for-sale securities, comprised of commenpaper, FDIC insured corporate bonds, obligatiofithe U.S. government and its
agencies, corporate debt securities, municipal §ovatiable rate demand notes (“VRDNs") and Auctate Securities (“ARS"), are carried
at fair value, with unrealized gains and lossesngid within other comprehensive income (loss) ssparate component of stockholders’
equity. Realized gains and losses and declinealirejjudged to be other than temporary, if anyawailable-forsale securities are included
earnings. The cost of investment securities sotttiermined by the specific identification method.

Fair Value Measurement — Definition and Hierarchy

Intevac reports certain financial assets and lizdsl at fair value. Intevac defines fair valuetlaes price that would be received from
selling an asset or paid to transfer a liabilittamorderly transaction between market participahtee measurement date.

Fair value measurements are classified and distiosene of the following three categories:
Level 1— Valuations based on quoted prices in active ntarke identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2— Valuations based on other than quoted pricestineamarkets for identical assets and liabilitigsoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in in@et markets, or other inputs that are observablzaarbe corroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of #esets or liabilities.

Level 3— Valuations based on inputs that are generallyoseovable and typically reflect management’'s esésaf assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing theedt or liability.

Business Combinations

Intevac accounts for business combinations usie@duguisition method of accounting. Transactioriscase expensed as incurred. In-
process research and development (“IPR&D”) cosiapitalized as an intangible asset. Contingemsideration is recorded as a liability at
the measurement date with subsequent re-measureneentded as general and administrative expernsts @r business restructuring and
exit activities related to the acquired companyiaciided in the post-combination financial resusiring 2010, Intevac incurred $255,000
of acquisition-related costs which have been inetlich selling, general and administrative expewnsethe consolidated statements of
operations.

Trade Accounts and Notes Receivables and Doubtfotdunts

Intevac evaluates the collectibility of trade aatisureceivables and notes receivable on an ondpaisig and provides reserves against
potential losses when appropriate. Management aesilyistorical bad debts, customer concentratmrstpmer creditworthiness, changes in
customer payment tendencies and current econoeridsrwhen evaluating the adequacy of the allowBoagoubtful accounts. Customer
accounts are
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

written off against the allowance when the amosmtdemed uncollectible. Also, accounts determindgbtuncollectible are put in nonaccr
status whereby interest is not accrued on thoseuats. Credit losses, when realized, have beennntile range of the Company’s
expectations.

Included in trade receivables at December 31, 201He current portion of a discounted promissarterfrom a customer of $1.5
million. The non-current portion of the note reedile of $3.0 million is included in other long-teassets.

Included in trade receivables are unbilled recdesmbelated to government contracts of $1.0 milkod $1.1 million at December 31,
2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively whicludes $387,000 and $474,000 of fee retention, réispsc

Inventories
Inventories are generally stated at the lower st oo market, with cost determined on an averagelwasis.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Equipment and leasehold improvements are stateasatDepreciation is computed using the straigig-#nethod over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows: computedssanftware, 3 years; machinery and equipment, ssy@arniture, 7 years; vehicles, 4 years;
and leasehold improvements, remaining lease term.

Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets

The purchase price of an acquired business isa#id¢c as applicable, between IPR&D, other idefttifiantangible assets, net tangible
assets and goodwill. IPR&D is defined as the valssigned to those projects for which the relatedycts have no alternative future use.
Determining the portion of the purchase price ated to IPR&D and other intangible assets requiresCompany to make significant
estimates. The amount of the purchase price aéddat|PR&D and other intangible assets is detesthiny estimating the future cash flows
of each project or technology and discounting thiecash flows back to their present values. Theodist rate used is determined at the time
of the acquisition in accordance with accepted atéadin methods. For IPR&D, these valuation methogiel® include consideration of the risk
of the project not achieving commercial feasibility

Contingent consideration is recorded at the actipiistate at the estimated fair value of the caygit payments. The acquisition date
fair value is measured based on the consideratipacted to be transferred (probability-weighted§cdunted back to present value. The
discount rate used is determined at the time oatuiisition in accordance with accepted valuatmthods. The fair value of the contingent
consideration is remeasured at the estimated &uievat each reporting period with the changeimviaue recognized as income or expense
in the consolidated statements of operations.

Gooduwill represents the excess of the aggregatehpse price over the fair value of net assetsydicy IPR&D, of acquired business:
Intevac’'s methodology for allocating the purchadeeprelating to purchase acquisitions is deterahitheough established and generally
accepted valuation techniques. Goodwill is measaseithe excess of the cost of the acquisition theesum of the amounts assigned to
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acaliess liabilities assumed. Intevac assigns assepsired (including goodwill) and liabilities
assumed to a reporting unit as of the date of adapr.

Purchased intangible assets other than goodwita@rtized over their useful lives unless thesedliare determined to be indefinite.
Purchased intangible assets are carried at cestalcumulated amortization. Amortization is coragudver the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets, generally one to thirteen yesing the straight line method.
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Goodwill and purchased intangible assets with imitef useful lives are not amortized, but are rexdd for impairment annually during
the fourth quarter of each fiscal year and whenevents or changes in circumstances indicate lieatdrrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable. For goodwill, Intevac performs a twegpsmpairment test. In the first step, Intevac pames the fair value of each reporting unit
to its carrying value. Intevac’s reporting unite aonsistent with the reportable segments idedtifieNote 12, based on the manner in which
Intevac operates its business and the nature séthperations. Depending on the facts and circumostalntevac determines the fair value of
each of its reporting units based upon the mostaggiate valuation technique using the income agghnpthe market approach or a
combination thereof. The income and market appresgrere selected as management believes theseaeappsagenerally provide the most
reliable indications of fair value when the valdehe operations is more dependent on the abiityenerate earnings than on the value of the
assets used in the production process. Under tiogni@ approach Intevac calculates the fair valueefeporting units based on the present
value of estimated future cash flows. Under theketaapproach Intevac estimates the fair value basadarket multiples of revenue or
earnings for comparable companies. Each valuatiomique has advantages and drawbacks, which raustrtsidered when applying those
techniques. The income approach closely corretatesanagement’s expectations of future resultgdmuires significant assumptions which
can be highly sensitive. The market approach &ixaly straightforward to measure, but it may f&ablt to find directly comparable
companies in the marketplace. If the fair valu¢hefreporting unit exceeds the carrying value efrtht assets assigned to that unit, goodwill
is not impaired and no further testing is perforréthe carrying value of the net assets assigogbe reporting unit exceeds the fair value of
the reporting unit, then Intevac would perform sleeond step of the impairment test in order tordete the implied fair value of the
reporting unit’s goodwill. If the carrying value afreporting unit's goodwill exceeds its impliedr faalue, Intevac would record an
impairment loss equal to the difference. Intevatdtmted these impairment tests in the fourth qualftéscal 2011, 2010 and 2009 and the
results of these tests indicated that Intevac’'slgdlband purchased intangible assets with indédiniseful lives were not impaired.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intafgéssets to be held and used are reviewed foriimeat whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amaedisuch assets may not be recoverable. Determmaficecoverability of long-lived assets
is based on an estimate of undiscounted future ftasbk resulting from the use of the asset anéventual disposition. Measurement of an
impairment loss for long-lived assets and certdéntifiable intangible assets that management égpedold and use is based on the fair
value of the asset. When an impairment loss isggized, the carrying amount of the asset is redtmwé@s estimated fair value. No
impairment charges were recognized in fiscal 2@0D10 and 2009.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognimadg enacted tax rates for the effect of tempodé#fgrences between book and tax
bases of recorded assets and liabilities. Defdemedssets are reduced by a valuation allowaritéifmore likely than not that a portion of 1
deferred tax asset will not be realized.

On a quarterly basis, Intevac provides for incom@s$ based upon an annual effective income taxTh&eeffective tax rate is highly
dependent upon the level of Intevac’s projectediags, the geographic composition of worldwide @ags, tax regulations governing each
region, net operating loss carryforwards, avaiigbdf tax credits and the effectiveness of Intégdax planning strategies. Intevac carefully
monitors the changes in many factors and adjusfféstive income tax rate on a timely basis. fatresults differ from the estimates, this
could have a material effect on Intevac’s businfisancial condition and results of operations.

The calculation of tax liabilities involves sigmifint judgment in estimating the impact of uncetiein the application of complex tax
laws. Resolution of these uncertainties in a mammmsistent with Intevac’s expectations couldehavmaterial effect on Intevac’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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Intevac recognizes accrued interest and penaélated to unrecognized tax benefits in the prowi$ay income taxes.

Sales and Value Added Taxes

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to gowental authorities are presented on a net basieiaccompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

Revenue Recognition

In 2009, the FASB issued amended revenue recogrgticdance for arrangements with multiple delivégaland certain software sold
with tangible products. This new guidance elimisatee residual method of revenue recognition agdires the use of management’s best
estimate of selling price (“ESP”) for individuakehents of an arrangement when vendor specific tibgeevidence (“VSOE”) or third party
evidence (“TPE") is unavailable. Intevac implemehtieis guidance prospectively beginning in thet fipgarter of fiscal 2010 for transactions
that were initiated or materially modified duririgdal 2010. The implementation of the new guiddmee an insignificant impact on reported
net revenues as compared to net revenues undereieus guidance, as the new guidance did notggh#ire units of accounting within sales
arrangements, and the elimination of the residuethod for the allocation of arrangement consideratiad an inconsequential impact on the
amount and timing of reported net revenues.

In 2010, the FASB issued guidance for the milestoeéhod of revenue recognition. Under the milestme¢hod, consideration earned
from achievement of the milestone is viewed asdp@idicative of the value provided to the custotmeough either (1) the efforts performed
or (2) a specific outcome resulting from the parfance to achieve that specific milestone. Undenthestone method, contingent
arrangement consideration earned from the achieneai@ milestone is recognized in its entiretyhia period in which the milestone is
achieved. Under this new method of accounting,lastine must be “substantive&fore the method can be applied; that is, atrtbegtion o
the arrangement there is a substantial uncertalmyt the achievement of the milestone, substanffeet is required to achieve the
milestone, and none of the payment for the milesisrrefundable. Intevac implemented this guidgrospectively beginning in the first
quarter of fiscal 2010 for transactions that waeigadted or materially modified during fiscal 201éhplementation of this new guidance hat
insignificant impact on reported net revenues aspared to net revenues under the previous guidance.

Intevac recognizes revenue when persuasive eviddrae arrangement exists, delivery has occurreitile and risk of loss have
passed to Intevac’s customer or services have feeelered, the price is fixed or determinable, asibbctibility is reasonably assured.
Intevac’s shipping terms are customarily FOB shiggdoint or equivalent terms. Intevac’s revenu@gedion policy generally results in
revenue recognition at the following points: (1) &l transactions where legal title passes toctitomer upon shipment, Intevac recognizes
revenue upon shipment for all products that hawnlmemonstrated to meet product specifications psishipment; the portion of revenue
associated with certain installation-related tasldeferred, and that revenue is recognized upaorptaiion of the installation-related tasks;
(2) for products that have not been demonstratedeet product specifications prior to shipmenterawe is recognized at customer
acceptance; and (3) for arrangements containingjpfeielements, the revenue relating to the undedig elements is deferred until deliver
the deferred elements. When a sales arrangemetatic®@multiple elements, Intevac allocates reveanwgEach element based on a selling
hierarchy. The selling price for a deliverable &séd on its VSOE if available, TPE if VSOE is negitable, or best ESP if neither VSOE nor
TPE is available. Intevac generally utilizes théPEfie to the nature of its products. In certairsatechnology upgrade sales are accounted
for as multiple-element arrangements, usually $gitveen delivery of the parts and installatiorttencustomer’s systems. In these cases,
Intevac recognizes revenue for the relative salfieg pf the parts upon shipment and transfer I, t#énd recognizes revenue for the relative
sales price of installation services when
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those services are completed. Revenue relatede® afaspare parts is generally recognized upgonséint. Revenue related to services is
generally recognized upon completion of the sesvite addition, Intevac uses the installment metiooecord revenue based on cash rec
in situations where the account receivable is ctdlg over an extended period of time and in managé€mjudgment the degree of
collectibility is uncertain.

Intevac performs research and development workwatéous government-sponsored research contii@eteenue on cost-plus-fee
contracts is recognized to the extent of costsadlgtincurred plus a proportionate amount of the éarned. Intevac considers fixed fees under
cost-plus-fee contracts to be earned in propottiche allowable costs actually incurred in perfance of the contract. Revenue on fixed-
price contracts is recognized on a milestone metiguercentage-of-completion method of contracbanting. For contracts structured as
milestone agreements, revenue is recognized wispedcfied milestone is achieved, provided thatlig)milestone event is substantive in
nature and there is substantial uncertainty alieuaithievement of the milestone at the incepticth@figreement, (2) the milestone payment
is non-refundable, and (3) there is no continuiagfgrmance obligations associated with the milestoslyment. Any milestone payments
received prior to satisfying these revenue recammitriteria are deferred. Intevac generally deteem the percentage completed based on the
percentage of costs incurred to date in relaticota estimated costs expected through completighe contract. When estimates of total
costs to be incurred on a contract exceed estinoétesal revenue to be earned, a provision forehtre loss on the contract is recorded in
period the loss is determined.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adsieglicosts were not material for all periods présdn

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of Intevac’s foreign sulisies in Singapore and Hong Kong and the Taiwamdin is the U.S. dollar. The
functional currency of Intevac’s foreign subsidégrin China, Malaysia and Korea is the local cuayesf the country in which the respective
subsidiary operates. Assets and liabilities reabiddoreign currencies are translated at yearetwthange rates; revenues and expenses are
translated at average exchange rates during thie Mea effect of foreign currency translation adijsnts are included in stockholders’ equity
as a component of accumulated other comprehensteenie in the accompanying consolidated balanceshBee effects of foreign currency
transactions are included in other income in therd@nation of net income. Net losses from foreigmrency transactions were $32,000,
$520,000 and $226,000 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, casphy.

Comprehensive Income
The components of accumulated other comprehensogarie (loss), were as follows at December 31, 20112010:

December 31,

2011 2010
(In thousands)
Accumulated net unrealized holding loss on avag-for-sale investments, net of t $(267) $(40¢)
Foreign currency translation gains and los 681 663
Total accumulated other comprehensive inci $ 414 $ 25E

Employee Stock Plans

Intevac has equity-based compensation plans tbatda for the grant to employees of equity-basedrdg; including incentive or non-
statutory stock options, restricted stock, stoghrapiation rights, performance units and performessttares. In addition, these plans provide
for the grant of non-statutory stock
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options to non-employee directors and consultantsvac also has an employee stock purchase planhwrovides Intevac’s employees
with the opportunity to purchase Intevac commomlstat a discount through payroll deductions. SeteRdor a complete description of
these plans and their accounting treatment.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Stassl&oard (“FASB”) issued authoritative guidancet tillows entities to first assess
qualitatively whether it is necessary to perform tivo-step goodwill impairment test. If an entiglibves, as a result of its qualitative
assessment, that it is more likely than not thatféiir value of a reporting unit is less than asrging amount, the quantitative two-step
goodwill impairment test is required. An entity hhe unconditional option to bypass the qualitatiseessment and proceed directly to
performing the first step of the goodwill impairntéest. The guidance is effective for annual artdrim goodwill impairment tests perform
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2@ifh early adoption permitted. Intevac does nqtext the adoption of these provisions to
have a significant effect on its consolidated fitiahstatements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued authoritative guidahat amends the presentation requirements fopgrensive income in financial
statements. The guidance requires entities to repanponents of comprehensive income either asgparsingle continuous statement of
comprehensive income that would combine the compisnaf net income and other comprehensive incomig, @ separate, but consecutive,
statement following the statement of income. Thidance is effective for interim and annual peribdginning after December 15, 2011 and
is to be applied retrospectively. Intevac doesexgiect the adoption of these provisions to havgrafieant effect on its consolidated financ
statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued authoritative guidathet amends the existing requirements for faingaheasurement and
disclosure. The guidance expands the disclosurereagents around fair value measurements categbinzievel 3 of the fair value hierarc
and requires disclosure of the level in the falugahierarchy of items that are not measured awtlue in the statement of financial position
but whose fair value must be disclosed. It alsdfeda and expands upon existing requirements feasarement of the fair value of financial
assets and liabilities as well as instruments ifiadsn stockholders’ equity. The guidance is effee for interim and annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2011. Intevac doe&xpect the adoption of these provisions to hasigrificant effect on its consolidated
financial statements.

2. Equity-Based Compensation

Intevac accounts for share-based awards in accoedaith the provisions of the accounting guidantéctv requires the measurement
and recognition of compensation expense for allesbased payment awards made to employees, camsudirad directors based upon the
grant-date fair value of those awards. The estichtatie value of Intevac’s equitpased awards, less expected forfeitures, is aredrtzer the
awards’ service periods using the graded vestimngpation method. During the years ended Decemtef811, 2010 and 2009 Intevac
recognized equity-based compensation expenseddtattock options and shares issued pursuard tariployee stock purchase plan of $4.0
million, $3.3 million and $4.3 million, respectivel

Descriptions of Plans

2004 Equity Incentive Plan

In 2004, the Board of Directors and Intevac stodttérs approved adoption of the 2004 Equity IncenBNan (the “2004 Plan”). The
2004 Plan serves as the successor equity incguridggam to the 1995 Stock Option/Stock Issuance @he “1995 Plan”). Upon adoption of
the 2004 Plan, all remaining shares availabledsnance under the 1995 Plan were transferred 200w Plan.
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The 2004 Plan is a broad-based, long-term reteptiogram intended to attract and retain qualifiethagement and employees, and
align stockholder and employee interests. The Zaa permits the grant of incentive or non-statusiock options, restricted stock, stock
appreciation rights, performance units and perforceashares. As of December 31, 2011, only stodkmphave been issued pursuant to the
2004 Plan. Option price, vesting period, and otbans are determined by the administrator of tH@&2@lan, but the option price shall
generally not be less than 100% of the fair mavkéie per share on the date of grant. As of Dece®be2011, 4.1 million shares of comn
stock were authorized for future issuance undef@@ Plan. Options granted under the 2004 Plamxarcisable upon vesting and vest over
periods of up to five years. Options currently egpio later than ten years from the date of greime. 2004 Plan expires no later than
March 10, 2014.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, Intevaictgd 583,000 stock options pursuant to the 2084 With an estimated total grant-
date fair value of $3.5 million including 2,000 sksgranted to a consultant with a grant datevdire of $11,000. Of this amount, Intevac
estimated that the equity-based compensation fimrogrants that will be forfeited, and are therefaot expected to vest, was $813,000.
During the year ended December 31, 2010, Intevaistgd 763,000 stock options pursuant to the 2084 With an estimated total grant-date
fair value of $5.1 million including 2,000 sharesugted to a consultant with a grant date fair vaiu$13,000. Of this amount, Intevac
estimated that the equity-based compensation fdorogrants that will be forfeited, and are therefoot expected to vest, was $1.2 million.
During the year ended December 31, 2009, Intevaictgd 536,000 stock options pursuant to the 2084 With an estimated total grant-date
fair value of $1.4 million. Of this amount, Intevastimated that the equity-based compensationdaom grants that will be forfeited, and are
therefore not expected to vest, was $319,000.

2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In 2003, Intevac’s stockholders approved adoptioih® 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ExMiich serves as the
successor to the Employee Stock Purchase Plamalfigadopted in 1995. Upon adoption of the ESHRhares available for issuance under
the prior plan were transferred to the ESPP. ThHRREfrovides that eligible employees may purchasyée common stock through payroll
deductions at a price equal to 85% of the lowaheffair market value at the beginning of the aqgtlle offering period or at the end of each
applicable purchase interval. Offering periodsgererally two years in length, and consist of éesesf sixmonth purchase intervals. Eligil
employees may join the ESPP at the beginning ofsaagnonth purchase interval. Under the terms of theFE ®/ployees can choose to t
up to 10% of their base earnings withheld to pusehatevac common stock. Under the ESPP, Intevid284,000, 255,000 and 240,000
shares to employees in 2011, 2010 and 2009, reésplgctAs of December 31, 2011, 302,000 shares imadaavailable for issuance under the
ESPP. During the years ended December 31, 2010, 288 2009 Intevac granted purchase rights withstimated total grant-date fair value
of $1.8 million, $53,000 and $328,000, respectively

The effect of recording equityased compensation for the years ended Decemb2031, 2010 and 2009 was as follows (in thousa

2011 2010 2009
Equity-based compensation by type of aw:
Stock options $ 2,924 $ 2,96¢ $ 3,46¢
Employee stock purchase pl 1,10€ 351 787
Total equit-based compensatic 4,03( 3,31¢ 4,25k
Tax effect on equi-based compensatic (1,030 (1,06¢) (1,229
Net effect on net incom $ 3,00( $ 2,24¢ $ 3,031

49



INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Stock Options

The exercise price of each stock option equalsitheket price of Intevac’s stock on the date of gritost options are scheduled to vest
over four years and expire no later than ten yaties the grant date. The fair value of each opgitant is estimated on the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model. This modabk developed for use in estimating the value bfiply traded options that have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferabléeVac’s employee stock options have characteristipsficantly different from those of
publicly traded options. The weighted average agpsioms used in the model are outlined in the foitmytable:

2011 2010 2009
Stock Options
Expected volatility 64.82% 67.75% 67.17%
Risk free interest rai 1.71% 1.6% 2.01%
Expected term of options (in yea 4.7t 4,52 4.47
Dividend yield None None None

The computation of the expected volatility assumptised in the Black-Scholes calculations for neants is based on historical
volatility of Intevac’s stock price. The risk-frésterest rate is based on the yield available dh Ureasury Strips with an equivalent
remaining term. The expected life of employee simufions represents the weighted-average periddtteastock options are expected to
remain outstanding and was determined based aorikitexperience of similar awards, giving considi®n to the contractual terms of the
stock-based awards and vesting schedules. Thesdidigield assumption is based on Intevac’s hisbbryot paying dividends and the
assumption of not paying dividends in the future.

The weighted-average estimated fair value of emg#atock options granted during the years endedrieer 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
was $5.98, $6.63 and $2.57 per share, respectively.
ESPP

The fair value of the employee stock purchase iiglbstimated on the date of grant using the Blaclkeles option pricing model with
the following weighted-average assumptions:

2011 2010 2009
Stock Purchase Right
Expected volatility 51.6% 55.2(% 82.5t%
Risk free interest rai 0.44% 0.41% 0.85%
Expected term of purchase rights (in yei 1.3¢ 0.7: 1.8t
Dividend yield None None None

The expected life of purchase rights is the peabtime remaining in the current offering periochélweighted-average estimated fair
value of employee stock purchase rights grantegyaunt to the ESPP during the years ended Decerib2031, 2010 and 2009 was $4.84,
$4.63 and $2.73 per share, respectively.
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Stock Plan Activity
2004 Equity Incentive Plan
A summary of activity under the above captionechpéaas follows:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Weighted Average Contractual Term Aggregate
Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Price (years) Value
Options outstanding at December 31
2010 3,385,24! $ 11.61 5.9¢ $12,104,86
Options grante 582,70( $ 11.1¢
Options forfeitec (246,22) $ 14.1(
Options exercise (329,796 $ 4.67
Options outstanding at December 31
2011 3,391,92! $ 12.0: 5.5 $ 1,384,53
Vested and expected to vest at
December 31, 201 3,208,53. $ 12.0¢ 5.4¢ $ 1,343,61.
Options exercisable at December 31
2011 2,070,06! $ 12.8¢ 5.0t $ 807,93

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrfiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $1.9 mjli.3 million and $149,000,
respectively. At December 31, 2011, Intevac ha@ #3llion of total unrecognized compensation exgemet of estimated forfeitures, related
to stock option plans that will be recognized oer weighted average period of 1.38 years.

The options outstanding and currently exercisabl@emember 31, 2011 were in the following exergisee ranges:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average
Number of C%?wrg:glc%nj Weighted Average Number Weighted Average

Shares Term Vested and

Range of Exercise Prices QOutstanding _(In Years) _Exercise Price_ _Exercisable _Exercise Price_
$2.63-%$6.73 453,96: 6.0< $ 4.3t 286,35¢ $ 4.5¢
$ 6.88- $10.69 441,69( 4.24 $ 8.6t 314,56! $ 8.47
$10.86- $11.25 346,69¢ 6.5 $ 11.1¢ 260,24 $ 11.1¢
$11.33- $11.33 493,05( 6.3¢ $ 11.3¢ — $ —
$11.66- $11.86 426,40( 5.41 $ 11.8¢ 142,77¢ $ 11.8¢
$12.00- $15.98 382,57! 5.2t $ 13.7¢ 263,20( $ 13.8¢
$16.13- $16.13 480,55( 5.1¢ $ 16.1: 480,55( $ 16.13
$16.49- $29.45 367,00( 5.27 $ 20.3¢ 322,37" $ 20.8¢
$2.63- $29.45 3,391,92! 5.5¢ $ 12.0¢ 2,070,06! $ 12.8¢

2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

During fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009 the aggeeig&insic value of purchase rights exercisedauridle ESPP was $1.4 million, $2.2
million and $1.0 million, respectively, determinasl of the date of purchase. During fiscal yeard 22010 and 2009, 234,000, 255,000 and
240,000 shares were purchased at an average pensite of $5.92, $4.02 and $3.73. At Decembe2811, there were 302,000 shares
available to be issued under the ESPP. As of DeeefSth 2011, Intevac had $706,000 of total unremeghcompensation expense, net of
estimated forfeitures related to purchase righas whll be recognized over the weighted averagépeasf 0.7 years.
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3. Earnings Per Share

Intevac calculates basic earnings per share (“ERBSif)g net income (loss) and the weighted-averageber of shares outstanding
during the reporting period. Diluted EPS includes ¢ffect from potential issuance of common stagispant to the exercise of employee
stock options.

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted income (loss) per share:

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands, except per share
amounts)

Net income (loss $(21,97%) $28,04¢ $(10,077)
Weightec-average share— basic 22,90: 22,34( 21,97t
Effect of dilutive potential common shar — 637 —
Weightec-average share— diluted 22,90: 22,97" 21,97t
Net income (loss) per sha— basic $ (0.9¢) $ 1.2¢ $ (0.4¢)
Net income (loss) per she— diluted $ (0.96) $ 1.27 $ (0.4¢)
Antidilutive shares based on employee awards erd 2,69¢ 1,89¢ 3,15(C

Potentially dilutive common shares consist of shassuable upon exercise of employee stock optamsare excluded from the
calculation of diluted EPS when their effect wobklanti-dilutive.

4. Concentrations
Credit Risk and Significant Customers

Financial instruments that potentially subject @m@npany to significant concentrations of credik gsnsist of cash equivalents, short-
and long-term investments, and accounts and netesviable. Intevac generally invests its excesls tamoney market funds, commercial
paper, FDIC insured corporate bonds, obligationhefU.S. government and its agencies, corpordiesgeurities, municipal bonds, VRDNs
and ARS. The Company has adopted an investmemypenid established guidelines relating to credilityy diversification and maturities of
its investments in order to preserve principal araintain liquidity. All investment securities intbvac’s portfolio have an investment grade
credit rating.

Intevac’s accounts receivable tend to be concesatriata limited number of customers. At December2Bl 1, one customer accounted
for 37% of Intevac’s accounts receivable. At Decentil, 2010, three customers accounted for 29%, @444.0%, respectively, of Intevac’s
accounts receivable and in aggregate accounte@Bfdrof accounts receivable.

Intevac’s largest customers tend to change fronogeo period. Historically, a significant portiarfi Intevacs revenues in any particu
period have been attributable to sales to a limitathber of customers. In 2011, two customers adeduior 41% and 12%, respectively, of
consolidated net revenues and in aggregate acabfort®83% of net revenues. In 2010, three customecsunted for 40%, 26% and 12%,
respectively, of consolidated net revenues andjgmegate accounted for 78% of net revenues. In,20@0customers accounted for 38% and
17%, respectively, of consolidated net revenuesiaaggregate accounted for 55% of net revenuewv#at performs credit evaluations of its
customers’ financial condition and generally regsideposits on system orders but does not genegallyre collateral or other security to
support customer receivables.

Products

Disk manufacturing products contributed a significgortion of Intevac’s revenues in 2011, 2010, 28@9. Intevac expects that the
ability to maintain or expand its current levelge¥enues in the future will depend upon continuimayket demand for its products; its
success in enhancing its existing systems and
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developing and manufacturing competitive disk mantufring equipment, such as the 200 Lean; Intevagsess in developing both military
and commercial products based on its low-light tedbgy; and its success in utilizing Intevac’s exige in complex manufacturing
equipment to develop and sell new equipment pradiactphotovoltaic (“PV”) manufacturing.
5. Balance Sheet Details

Balance sheet details were as follows as of DeceB8the?011 and 2010:

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of average @ostarket and consist of the following:

December 31,

2011 2010
(in thousands)

Raw material $12,66: $13,37(

Work-in-progress 3,02( 5,29t

Finished good 2,38¢ 2,00¢

$18,07( $20,67:

Finished goods inventory consists primarily of céetgd systems at customer sites that are undergustaylation and acceptance
testing.

Property, Plant and Equipment

December 31,

2011 2010
(in thousands)

Leasehold improvemen $14,93¢ $14,04:

Machinery and equipme 40,46¢ 36,93¢

55,40t 50,97¢

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 40,95¢ 37,06

Total property, plant and equipment, $14,44¢ $13,91¢

Customer Advances

Customer advances generally represent nonrefundabplesits invoiced by the Company in connectioiwnéceiving customer purche
orders and other events preceding acceptance tehsysCustomer advances related to products thetiat been shipped to customers and
included in accounts receivable were $1.9 milliobDacember 31, 2011 and $1.3 million at Decembef810.

Other Accrued Liabilities

December 31,

2011 2010
(in thousands)
Acquisitior-related contingent considerati $3,94: $ 4,23¢
Accrued product warrantie 2,58¢ 2,612
Deferred revenu 1,66t 1,714
Other taxes payab 714 991
Accrued income taxe 183 36C
Other 797 1,19:
Total other accrued liabilitie $9,881 $11,10¢
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Other Long-Term Liabilities

December 31,

2011 2010
(in thousands)
Acquisitior-related contingent considerati $4,77: $ 5,628
Accrued income taxe 4,191 4,09¢
Deferred profit 82C 1,10€
Accrued product warrantie 13¢€ 803
Total other lon-term liabilities $9,927 $11,63(

6. Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets, Net

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets #&sted for impairment on an annual basis or magufently upon the occurrence of
circumstances that indicate that goodwill and iirdtf life intangible assets may be impaired. lateeonducted these impairment tests in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009 ardrésults of these tests indicated that Intesygoodwill and purchased intangible assets
indefinite useful lives were not impaired.

Information regarding goodwill by reportable segtnfen the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2049 figllows:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Intevac Intevac
Equipment Photonics Total Equipment Photonics Total
(in thousands)

Beginning balanc $ 10,48 $ 7,90¢ $18,38¢ $ = $ 7,90¢ $ 7,90%
Goodwill acquired during the peric — — — 10,48« — 10,48¢
Impairment charge — — — — — —

Ending balanc $10,48¢ $ 7,90¢ $18,38¢ $10,48¢ $ 7,90¢ $18,38¢

During the year ended December 31, 2010, goodmdhigased by $10.5 million due to the acquisitioSofar Implant Technologies, li
(“SIT”).

Information regarding other acquisition-relatecamgible assets is as follows:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
(in thousands)
Customer relationshi $ 3,181 $ 1,47z $ 1,70¢ $ 3,181 $ 1,07¢ $ 2,107
Purchased technolog 1,14¢ 533 612 1,14¢ 38¢ 757
Covenants not to compe 14C 14C — 14C 14C —
Backlog 19¢ 19¢ — 19¢ 19¢ —
Total amortizable intangible ass: 4,66¢ 2,34¢ 2,321 4,66t 1,801 2,86¢
IPR&D 4,00(¢ — 4,00( 4,00( — 4,00(¢
Tradenamt 12C — 12C 12C — 12C
Total intangible asse $ 8,78t $ 2,34¢ $ 6,441 $ 8,78t $ 1,801 $ 6,98

Total amortization expense of purchased intangifdethe years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 ad@ @@s $543,000, $554,000 ¢
$554,000 respectively. Future amortization expénsgpected to be $541,000 for 2012, $541,000 04:32$363,000 for 2014, $284,000 for
2015, $281,000 for 2016 and $311,000 thereaftéantyible assets by segment as of December 31, &@1ds follows: Equipment; $5.6
million and Intevac Photonics; $866,000.
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7. Business Combination

On November 19, 2010, Intevac acquired the outgtgrghares of Solar Implant Technologies, Inc. T"pla privately-owned,
development stage company, which was focused @ticgean ion implant module to be used in the mactufing of photovoltaic cells.
Intevac’s primary reasons for this acquisition wiereomplement its existing product offerings amgbtovide opportunities for future growth.
The preliminary aggregate purchase price was $hfllibn, which consisted of an initial cash payméstaling $2.7 million and a contingent
consideration obligation with a fair value of $&nfllion payable in cash. In connection with the @isition, Intevac acquired $4.0 million of
IPR&D, $43,000 of tangible assets, and $10.5 mmllxd goodwill and assumed $703,000 of tangibleiliizds. Intevac also recorded an
$827,000 net deferred tax liability to reflect tag impact of the identified intangible assets thiéitnot generate tax deductible amortization
expense net of the future tax benefit of acquireidoperating loss carryforwards. The value attdblé to IPR&D has been capitalized as an
indefinite-lived intangible asset. Goodwill is dttrtable to estimated synergies arising from trgugition and other intangible assets that do
not qualify for separate recognition. Goodwill ist leductible for tax purposes.

In connection with the acquisition of SIT, Intevegreed to pay up to an aggregate of $7.0 milliorash to the selling shareholders if
certain milestones are achieved over a specifieidghentevac estimated the fair value of this dogent consideration to be in the amount of
$5.6 million based on the probability that certailestones would be met and the payments would daenon the targeted dates outlined in
the acquisition agreement. On July 21, 2011, Intewade $2.4 million in payments to the selling shatders for achievement of the first
milestone.

In connection with the acquisition of SIT, Intewaso agreed to pay a revenue earnout on Intevat' revenue from commercial sale
certain products over a specified period up toggregate of $9.0 million in cash to the sellingrehalders. Intevac estimated the fair valu
this contingent consideration to be in the amoti§ol million based on probability-based forecds®venues reflecting Intevac’s own
assumptions concerning future revenue of SIT. Agkdn the estimated probabilities of revenue a@reent could have a material effect on
the statement of operations and balance sheédhis iperiod of change.

The fair value measurement of contingent consideras based on significant inputs not observethénmarket and thus represents a
Level 3 measurement. Any change in fair value efadbntingent consideration subsequent to the atiguislate is recognized in operating
income within the consolidated statement of openati The following table represents a reconcilimbbthe change in the fair value
measurement of the contingent consideration lighfitir the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
(In thousands)
Beginning balanc $ 9,851 $ —
Contingent consideration acquired during the pe — 9,74¢
Changes in fair valu 1,243 10¢
Cash payment mac (2,389 —
Ending balanci $ 8,71f $9,857

Prior to the acquisition, Intevac had an equitgiest in SIT with a cost basis of $94,000 that aaunted for under the cost method.
As a result of revaluing Intevac’s equity interesSIT on the acquisition date, the Company reczgphia gain of $481,000, which was
included in other income, net, in the consolidattedement of operations.

Intevac has accounted for the acquisition of SIa Asisiness combination. Under business combinatioaunting, the assets and
liabilities of SIT were recorded as of the acqigsitdate, at their respective fair values, and obidated with the Company. The preliminary
purchase price allocation is based on estimates of
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the fair value of assets acquired and liabilitiesuened. Subsequent to the acquisition, Intevacipdidl $177,000 in notes payable to certain
selling shareholders assumed upon the acquisitio& purchase price has been allocated as follows:

(in thousands)

Current assets (including cash of $ $ 40
Property, plant, and equipme 3
IPR&D 4,00(
Goodwill 10,48¢
Long-term deferred tax asse 697
Total assets acquire 15,22¢
Notes payable to selle 177
Current liabilities 52¢€
Long-term deferred tax liabilitie 1,524
Total liabilities assume 2,22
Net assets acquire $12,99:

Intevac’s consolidated financial statements incl8HEs operating results from the date of acquisitiNovember 19, 2010. The pro
forma impact of the above acquisition was not gigaint to Intevac’s results for the year ended Delzer 31, 2010.
8. Financial Instruments
Cash and cash equivalents, short-term investmenttoag-term investments consist of:
December 31, 2011

Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Holding Holding Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(In thousands)
Cash and cash equivaler

Cash $ 14,26¢ $ — $ — $ 14,26¢
Money market fund 4,84¢ — — 4,84¢
Commercial pape 4,44 — — 4,44
Total cash and cash equivale $ 23,56( $ — $ — $ 23,56(
Shor-term investments
Commercial pape $ 1,05C $ — $ — $ 1,05C
Corporate bonds and medi-term notes 26,66: 28 78 26,61¢
FDIC insured corporate bon 9,59¢ 23 — 9,61¢
Municipal bonds 4,89¢ 10 — 4,90¢
U.S. treasury and agency securi 13,981 56 — 14,04:
VRDNs 2,35( — — 2,35(
Total shor-term investment $ 58,54¢ $ 117 $ 78 $ 58,58¢
Long-term investments
Corporate bonds and medi-term notes $ 14,76 $ 16 $ 77 $ 14,70(
U.S. treasury and agency securi 13,46¢ 22 1 13,481
ARS 4,90( — 41C 4,49(
Total lon¢-term investment $ 33,127 $ 38 $ 48E $ 32,67;
Total cash, cash equivalents, and investm $115,23: $ 15E $ 56€ $114,82:
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December 31, 2010

Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Holding Holding Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivaler

Cash $ 22,88' $ — $ — $ 22,88
Commercial pape 2,99¢ — 1 2,99¢
Corporate bond 1,25¢ — — 1,25¢
Money market fund 82,37¢ — — 82,37¢
Total cash and cash equivale $109,52: $ — $ 1 $109,52(
Shor-term investments
Commercial pape $ 2,99t $ — $ — $ 2,99t
U.S. treasury and agency securi 1,99¢ — — 1,99¢
Total shor-term investment $ 4,99 $ — $ — $ 4,99
Long-term investments
U.S. treasury and agency securi $ 6,97¢ $ 5 $ — $ 6,98¢
Corporate bonds and medi-term notes 5,61¢ — 5 5,61(
ARS 10,90( — 627 10,27:
Total lon¢-term investment $ 23,49: $ 5 $ 632 $ 22,86¢
Total cash, cash equivalents, and investm $138,00¢ $ 5 $ 632 $137,38(
The contractual maturities of available-for-saleuséies at December 31, 2011 are presented ifotloaving table.
Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(In thousands)
Due in one year or le: $ 63,40: $ 63,43¢
Due after one through two years 28,80: 28,76:
Due after ten years(. 8,76( 8,35:
$100,96! $100,55:

(1) Includes $575,000 in par value of VRD!
(2) Includes $1.8 million in par value of VRDNs and %4illion in par value of ARS

The following table provides the fair market vabfdntevac’s investments with unrealized losse$ #na not deemed to be other-than
temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2011.

December 31, 2011

In Loss Position for In Loss Position for
Less than 12 Months Greater than 12 Months
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands)
Corporate bonds and medi-term notes $ 21,36¢ $ 15t $ — $ —
U.S. treasury and agency securi 2,497 1 — —
ARS — — 4,49( 41C
$ 23,86 $ 15€ $ 4,49 $  41C
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All prices for the fixed maturity securities incind U.S. Treasury and agency securities, commepeipér, FDIC insured corporate
bonds, corporate bonds, VRDNs and municipal bonglsexeived from independent pricing servicesagdiby Intevac’s outside investment
manager. This investment manager performs a resfahe pricing methodologies and inputs utilizedtbg independent pricing services for
each asset type priced by the vendor. In additorgt least an annual basis, the investment macageucts due diligence visits and
interviews with each pricing vendor to verify thguts utilized for each asset class. The due ditigevisits include a review of the procedt
performed by each vendor to ensure that pricinduetians are representative of the price that wdaeldeceived to sell a security in an
orderly transaction. Any pricing where the inpub&sed solely on a broker price is deemed to bevell3 price. Intevac uses the pricing data
obtained from its outside investment manager aptineary input to make its assessments and detatioirs as to the ultimate valuation of
the above-mentioned securities and has not madeagdihe periods presented, any material adjustsnnsuch inputs.

VRDNSs are long-term floating rate municipal bondghvembedded put options that allow the bondhaldesell the security at par plus
accrued interest. Intevac’s VRDN portfolio is comspd of investments in many municipalities, which secured by irrevocable letters of
credit from major financial institutions or othaghly rated companies that serve as the pledgedtily source. Intevac can tender these
VRDN securities for sale upon notice to the braked receive payment for the tendered securitidsinviteven days.

As of December 31, 2011, all of the Company’s L&s&hancial instruments consisted of ARS with ggragate par value of $4.9
million that failed at auction. There was insuféiot observable market information to determinevalue for these financial instruments. The
Company estimated the fair values for these séesiity incorporating assumptions that it believask®at participants would use in their
estimates of fair value. Some of these assumptimhsded credit quality, collateralization, finahted maturity, estimates of the probability
being called or becoming liquid prior to final mety, redemptions of similar ARS, previous marketiwity for the same investment security,
impact due to extended periods of maximum auctd@srand valuation models. As a result of thisswwythe Company determined its AR
have a temporary impairment of $410,000 as of Déezr@l, 2011. The estimated fair value could chamyaficantly based on future mar
conditions. The Company will continue to assesddlrevalue of its ARS for substantive changesealevant market conditions, changes in its
financial condition or other changes that may atteestimates described above. Failed ARS repteggmoximately 3.9% of the Company’s
total cash, cash equivalents and investments Beaémber 31, 2011. During 2011, Intevac particigpp@tethree tender offers, sold ARS with
par values of $5.5 million, collected $5.2 milliand recognized realized losses on the sales of @3080n July 27, 2010, as a result of a
favorable ruling from the Financial Industry Redalg Authority arbitration panel, Intevac receivg®4.8 million from the repurchase of by
Citigroup of previously held ARS at par includinmgerest.

The following table represents the fair value hielng of Intevac’s assets measured at fair valua ecurring basis as of December 31,
2011.
Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands)

Assets:
Money market fund $ 4,84f $ 4,84F $ — $ —
U.S. treasury and agency securi 27,53( 10,73( 16,80( —
FDIC insured corporate bon 9,61¢ — 9,61¢ —
Commercial pape 5,497 — 5,497 —
Corporate bonds and medi-term notes 41,31 — 41,31 —
Municipal bonds 4,90¢ — 4,90¢ —
VRDNs 2,35( — 2,35( —
ARS 4,49( — — 4,49(

Total asset $100,55: $15,57¢ $80,48¢ $4,49(
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The following table presents the changes in LevakBuments measured on a recurring basis foy¢hes ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009. These balances consist of ARS fitabaks available-for-sale with changes in faineatecorded in stockholders’ equity.

2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)

Beginning balanc $10,27: $ 66,24¢ $66,32¢
Net realized losse (30¢) — —
Net unrealized gains included in other comprehensicome 217 3,07¢ 4,371
Proceeds from tender offe (5,199 — —
Redemptions at p: (500 (59,050 (4,450
Ending balanci $ 4,49 $ 10,27 $66,24¢

Included in accounts payable is $714,000 and $68000 book overdraft at December 31, 2011 and 2fespectively.

9. Income Taxes
The provision for (benefit from) income taxes ondme (loss) from continuing operations consisttheffollowing (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

Federal:
Current $ (899 $ 5,241 $(3,927)
Deferred (8,639 (1,706 (3,860
(4,532) 3,63¢ (7,787

State:

Current 8 8 3
Deferred — — 1,567
8 8 1,57(C

Foreign:
Current 141 41¢ 201
Deferred (3,749 — —
(3,607%) 41¢ 201
Total $(8,137) $ 3,962 $(6,016)

Income (loss) before income taxes (benefit) coadist the following (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
u.s $(15,07¢) $ 384 $(22,519)
Foreign (15,029 31,625 6,42(
$(30,10¢) $32,011 $(16,099)
Effective tax rate 27.(% 12.48% 37.4%

The tax benefits associated with exercises of nalifipd stock options and disqualifying dispositsoof stock acquired through
incentive stock options and the employee stockhmase plan increased income taxes receivable by,329@nd $69,000, in 2010 and 2009
respectively. Such benefits were credited to aolu#i paid-in capital.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying am®ohassets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts foonime tax purposes. Significant components of dedigiaix assets are as follows (in

thousands):

Deferred tax asset
Vacation, rent, warranty and other accrt
Depreciation and amortizatic
Inventory valuatior
Deferred incomt
Equity-based compensatic
Net operating loss, research and other tax cradiyforwards
Impairment losses on availa-for-sale securitie
Other

Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass
Total deferred tax asse
Deferred tax liabilities
Purchased technolog
Net deferred tax asse
As reported on the balance she
Current assel
Deferred tax asse
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass

Net current deferred tax ass
Other lon¢-term asset
Deferred tax asse
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass
Net nor-current deferred tax asst
Net deferred tax asse

December 31,

2011 2010
$ 1,191 $ 1,07
2,42¢ 3,41¢
1,167 2,02¢
20¢ 30¢
6,65t 6,15¢
27,09 16,94¢
14¢& 221
11€ (211
39,00¢ 29,94
(13,56)) (10,699
25,44: 19,24
(1,529 (1,52¢)
$ 23,91¢ $17,71¢
$ 2,45i $ 3,40(
(255) (276)
2,20z 3,12¢
35,02 25,01%
(13,306 (10,429
21,71 14,59
$ 23,91¢ $17,71¢

The valuation allowance of $13.6 million is attrible to state income tax temporary differencesdaidrred research and other tax
credits that are not realizable in the foreseehlilge. State research credit cafoywards of $8.9 million, which are fully offset layvaluatior

allowance, do not expire.

The difference between the tax provision (benetithe statutory federal income tax rate and thetavision (benefit) was as follows

(in thousands):

Income tax (benefit) at the federal statutory rate

State income taxes, net of federal ber

Effect of foreign operations taxes at various r.

Research tax credi

Effect of tax rate changes, permanent differenoek
adjustments of prior deferre

Unrecognized tax benefi

Total

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
$(10,53) $ 11,20« $(5,637)
5 5 1,02(
1,65¢ (10,65() (2,046)
(1,200 (500) (56E)
96( 187 965
98¢ 3,71¢ 242
$ (8,13)) $ 3,96 $(6,016)
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Included in the above rate reconciliation for tlearyended December 31, 2009 is $600,000 of netvar#hle federal adjustments rele
to prior estimates for research tax credits andhmestic Production Activities Deduction.

Intevac has not provided for U.S. federal incomé fameign withholding taxes on approximately $3Giflion of undistributed earnings
from non-U.S. operations as of December 31, 20talme Intevac intends to reinvest such earningsimtely outside of the United States.
If Intevac were to distribute these earnings, fgmeiax credits may become available under cureamttd reduce the resulting U.S. income tax
liability. Determination of the amount of unrecopei deferred tax liability related to these earsiisgnot practicable. Intevac will remit the
non-indefinitely reinvested earnings, if any, ofeivac’s non-U.S. subsidiaries where excess cashdmsnulated and Intevac determines that
it is advantageous for business operations, taash reasons.

Intevac enjoys a tax holiday in Singapore throdghtax years ending in 2015. The tax holiday presid lower income tax rate on
certain classes of income and the agreement regiiat certain thresholds of business investmetheamployment levels be met in Singapore
in order to maintain this holiday. As a result leiktincentive, the impact of the tax holiday deseshincome taxes by $1.2 million, $5.1
million and $1.2 million in 2011, 2010 and 200%pectively. The benefit of the tax holiday on metome (loss) per share (diluted) was
approximately $0.05, $0.22, and $0.06 in 2011, 2812009, respectively.

Included in prepaid expenses and other currentsaasboth December 31, 2011 and 2010 is $5.7anilind $4.4 million, respectively,
of Federal income taxes receivable which repressantsunts available as a result of carryback ofeesas of December 31, 2011, the
Company had Federal NOL carryforwards availablefteet future taxable income of approximately $2lion that expire between 2028
and 2031. As of December 31, 2011, the Companystad NOL carryforwards available to offset futatate taxable income of
approximately $41.2 million that expire between 2@hd 2031. In addition, the Company had variodsif@ and state tax credit
carryforwards combined of approximately $17.4 roiili Approximately $8.1 million of the credit caroyfvards are available to offset future
tax liabilities and expire between 2025 and 203t f'emaining amount is available indefinitely. @artof these carryforwards, when
realized, will be credited to additional paid-irpdal.

The total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefis $5.0 million as of December 31, 2011, all bfal would affect Intevac’s
effective tax rate if realized. The aggregate clearig the balance of gross unrecognized tax beneéte as follows for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
(In thousands)
Beginning balanc $4,49¢ $ 782
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 927 3,712
Additions for tax positions of prior yea — —
Reductions for tax positions of prior yei — —
Settlement: (400 —
Lapse of statute of limitatior — —
Ending balanci $5,021 $4,49¢

The unrecognized tax benefits may decrease indketwelve months due to examinations by tax adutilesr It is Intevac’s policy to
include interest and penalties related to unreamghiax benefits in the provision for income tagadhe consolidated statements of
operations. During fiscal 2011, Intevac recogniaetet tax expense for interest of $61,000. As afebeber 31, 2011 Intevac had $65,000 of
accrued interest related to unrecognized tax bisnefhich was classified as a long-term liabilitythe consolidated balance sheets. Intevac
did not accrue any penalties related to these ogrézed tax benefits because Intevac has othettalutes which would offset any potential
taxes due.
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Intevac is subject to income taxes in the U.S. f@darisdiction, and various state and foreigrigdictions. Tax regulations within each
jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation oé telated tax laws and regulations and requingfgignt judgment to apply. With fer
exceptions, Intevac is not subject to U.S. fedesttake and local, or international jurisdictionsame tax examinations by tax authorities for
the years before 2006. Tax years 1999 through 28®6ubject to income tax examinations by U.S.redded California tax authorities to 1
extent of tax credit carry forwards remaining alized in an otherwise open year. During fiscal 20the California income tax examination
for fiscal years ended 2005, 2006 and 2007 was t=iath Due to an income tax refund generated rg-dack claim, the Internal Revenue
Service is currently conducting a review of the @amy’s fiscal year 2009 tax return. Additionally, the&apore Inland Revenue Authority
conducting an examination of the fiscal 2009 taxnreof the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, irge Asia Pte. Ltd. Presently, there are
no other active income tax examinations in thesgligtions where Intevac operates.

10. Employee Benefit Plans
Employee Savings and Retirement Plan

In 1991, Intevac established a defined contributetimfement plan with 401(k) plan features. Thengtavers all United States employ
eighteen years and older. Employees may make batiths by a percentage reduction in their salariesto exceed the statutorily prescri
annual limit. Intevac made cash contributions ofCh500, $438,000 and $109,000 for the years en@eeémber 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009,
respectively. Employees may choose among severastiment options for their contributions and tiskiare of Intevac’s contributions, and
they are able to move funds between investmenbvaptt any time. Intevac’s common stock is notafrthe investment options.
Administrative expenses relating to the plan asgimficant.

Employee Bonus Plans

Intevac has various employee bonus plans. A psbfiring plan provides for the distribution of agesrtage of pre-tax profits to
substantially all of Intevac’s employees not eligifor other performance-based incentive plangpupmaximum percentage of
compensation. Other plans award annual or quafemyses to Intevac’s executives and key contrisuiased on the achievement of
profitability and other specific performance crigetCharges to expense under these plans wered2and $7.6 million, respectively for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. Therenwaziearges to expense under these plans for theegdad December 31, 20(

11. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

Intevac leases certain facilities under non-caidelaperating leases that expire at various tinpe®WMarch 2017 and has options to
renew most leases, with rentals to be negotiateda of Intevac’s leases contain provisions &tal adjustments. Included in other long-
term assets on the consolidated balance sheet86d0 of prepaid rent related to the effective o Intevac’s long-term lease for Intevac’
Santa Clara facility. The facility leases requinéelac to pay for all normal maintenance costss&rental expense was approximately
$2.9 million, $3.3 million and $3.4 million for theears ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 20Q®atdgely. Future minimum lease
payments at December 31, 2011 totaled $10.2 midlimhwere: $2.3 million for fiscal 2012; $2.1 nuhi for fiscal 2013; $1.8 million for
fiscal 2014; $1.8 million for fiscal 2015; $1.7 toh for fiscal 2016 and $401,000 for thereafter.

Guarantees
Officer and Director Indemnifications

As permitted or required under Delaware law anthéomaximum extent allowable under that law, Intelvas certain obligations to
indemnify its current and former officers and dims for certain events or occurrences
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while the officer or director is, or was servingjJrtevac’s request in such capacity. These indéoation obligations are valid as long as the
director or officer acted in good faith and in armar the person reasonably believed to be in coppbsed to the best interests of the
Company and, with respect to any criminal actiopraceeding, had no reasonable cause to believa hisr conduct was unlawful. The
maximum potential amount of future payments Intes@ald be required to make under these indemnificaibligations is unlimited;
however, Intevac has a director and officer inscegmolicy that mitigates Intevac’s exposure andksalntevac to recover a portion of any
future amounts paid. As a result of Intevac’s iasae policy coverage, Intevac believes the estidnfaie value of these indemnification
obligations is not material.

Other Indemnifications

As is customary in Intevac’s industry, many of irge’s contracts provide remedies to certain third parsuch as defense, settlemen
payment of judgment for intellectual property clainelated to the use of its products. Such inddoatibn obligations may not be subject to
maximum loss clauses. Historically, payments matited to these indemnifications have been imnadteri

Warranty

Intevac provides for the estimated cost of warravitgn revenue is recognized. Intevac’s warranpeiscontract terms and for its disk
manufacturing systems the warranty typically rargetsveen 12 and 24 months from customer accept&oceystems sold through a
distributor, Intevac offers a 3 month warranty. Tamainder of any warranty period is the respotigitof the distributor. During this
warranty period any defective non-consumable magseplaced and installed at no charge to th@est The warranty period on
consumable parts is limited to their reasonabldledases. Intevac uses estimated repair or rephace costs along with its historical warra
experience to determine its warranty obligatiotevac generally provides a twelve month warrantyt®intevac Photonics’ products. The
provision for the estimated future costs of wartydatbased upon historical cost and product perémze experience. Intevac exercises
judgment in determining the underlying estima

On the consolidated balance sheets, the shortgertion of the warranty provision is included imet accrued liabilities, while the
long-term portion is included in other long-terrabilities. The expense associated with productavdies issued or adjusted is included in
cost of net revenues on the consolidated stateroéofserations.

The following table displays the activity in the manty provision account for 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
(in thousands)
Beginning balanc $ 3,41¢ $ 1,602
Expenditures incurred under warrant (2,169 (2,939
Accruals for product warrantie 1,54: 4,29:
Adjustments to previously existing warranty accst (65) 45¢
Ending balanci $ 2,724 $ 3,41¢

The following table displays the balance sheetsifi@stion of the warranty provision account at Beber 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,

2011 2010
(in thousands)
Other accrued liabilitie $2,58¢ $2,61z2
Other lon¢-term liabilities 13¢€ 802
Total warranty provisiol $2,72¢ $3,41°F
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Legal Matters

From time to time, Intevac receives notificatioarfr third parties, including customers and supplisegking indemnification, litigation
support, payment of money or other actions in cofioe with claims made against them. In additioonf time to time, Intevac receives
notification from third parties claiming that Intw may be or is infringing their intellectual progyeor other rights. Intevac also is subject to
various other legal proceedings and claims, bagbrésd and unasserted, that arise in the ordimamse of business. Although the outcom
these claims and proceedings cannot be predictibdoertainty, Intevac does not believe that anthese other existing proceedings or claims
will have a material adverse effect on its consdbd financial condition or results of operations.

12. Segment and Geographic Information

Intevac’s two reportable segments are: Equipmedtiatevac Photonics. Intevac’s chief operating sieci-maker has been identified as
the President and CEO, who reviews operating resulinake decisions about allocating resourcesaselssing performance for the entire
Company. Segment information is presented based ippevac’'s management organization structure &@eckmber 31, 2011 and the
distinctive nature of each segment. Future chatm#ss internal financial structure may resulthanges to the reportable segments
disclosed.

Each reportable segment is separately managedaangeparate financial results that are reviewedteyac’s chief operating decision-
maker. Each reportable segment contains closeyetproducts that are unique to the particulameeg. Segment operating profit is
determined based upon internal performance meassesksby the chief operating decision-maker.

Intevac derives the segment results from its irstienmanagement reporting system. The accountingipslintevac uses to derive
reportable segment results are substantially thee ses those used for external reporting purposasalyement measures the performance of
each reportable segment based upon several matdtsling orders, net revenues and operating ircdianagement uses these results to
evaluate the performance of, and to assign resstiogeach of the reportable segments. Intevac gesneertain operating expenses separ
at the corporate level. Intevac allocates certhih@se corporate expenses to the segments in anrdraqual to 3% of net revenues. Segment
operating income excludes interest income/expendether financial charges and income taxes acegr how a particular reportable
segment’s management is measured. Management dbesnsider impairment charges and unallocatedsénsheasuring the performance
of the reportable segments.

The Equipment segment designs, develops and maraetafacturing equipment and solutions to the ligsk drive industry and offers
high-productivity technology solutions to the P\dirstry. The Equipment segment began offering stdliprocessing systems for thin film
applications in 2009 and for wafer-based crystalBilicon (“c-Si”) applications in 2010 to PV ceflanufacturers. In 2010 the Equipment
segment also began offering inspection equipmeRMaell manufacturers. Historically, the majoritfyintevac’s revenue has been derived
from the Equipment segment and Intevac expectshieanajority of its revenues for the next sevgears will continue to be derived from
the Equipment segment.

The Intevac Photonics segment develops compadteffestive, high-sensitivity digital-optical prodts for the capture and display of
low-light images and the optical analysis of materialevac provides sensors, cameras and systemge¥ernment applications such as n
vision and long-range target identification anddommercial applications in the inspection, lanoeoément, scientific and medical
industries.
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INTEVAC, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Information for each reportable segment for theyeaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 islas/#ol

Net Revenues

Equipment
Intevac Photonic
Total segment net revenu

Operating Profit (Loss)

Equipment

Intevac Photonic

Total segment operating profit (los
Unallocated cost

Operating income (los!

Interest incom

Other income and expense,
Income (loss) before income tax

Depreciation and amortization

Equipment
Intevac Photonic

Total segment depreciation and amortiza

Unallocated cost

Total consolidated depreciation and amortiza

Capital Additions

Equipment
Intevac Photonic
Total segment capital additio
Unallocatec
Total consolidated capital additio

2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)
$54,87¢ $168,25: $51,38¢
28,09¢ 34,27 26,59:
$82,97¢ $202,52! $77,98:
2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)

$(20,327) $40,28¢ $ (8,826
(4,14)) (4,907) (4,139
(24,467) 35,38t (12,959
(6,279 (4,147) (4,389
(30,74)) 31,23¢ (17,34)
847 89¢ 1,362
(212) (126) (109)
$(30,106) $32,017 $(16,099)

2011 2010 2009

(in thousands)

$2,901 $3,12¢ $2,91¢
1,36¢ 1,35¢ 1,32¢
4,27( 4,48¢ 4,24;
1,152 1,37¢ 1,34:
$5,42: $5,861 $5,58¢

2011 2010 2009

(in thousands)

$2,717 $1,54( $1,17¢
2,14¢ 5,167 93¢
4,86t 6,707 2,114
717 34¢€ 501
$5,58¢ $7,05¢ $2,61F
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Segment Assets

2011 2010
(in thousands)

Equipment $ 48,13: $ 57,13(
Intevac Photonic 29,947 31,27¢
Total segment asse 78,08( 88,40¢
Cash and investmer 114,82: 137,38(
Deferred income taxe 23,91¢ 17,71¢
Other current asse 6,84¢ 5,88¢
Common property, plant and equipm 1,36¢€ 1,80z
Other asset 78¢€ 57¢€
Consolidated total asse $225,82: $251,77:

Geographic revenue information for the three yeaded December 31, 2011 is based on the locatitreafustomer. Revenue from
unaffiliated customers by geographic region/countag as follows:

2011 2010 2009

(in thousands)
United State: $28,90" $ 47,55« $38,76¢
Asia(*) 47,32t 149,45¢ 38,14
Europe 6,12¢ 5,00( 1,06¢
Rest of world 614 51¢€ —
Total net revenue $82,97: $202,52¢ $77,98:

(*) Revenues are attributable to the geographia arevhich Intevac's customers are located. Nelan@venues in Asia include shipments
to Singapore, China, Japan and Malay

Net property, plant and equipment by geographi@mregt December 31 was as follows:

2011 2010

(in thousands)
United State: $14,00° $13,26¢
Asia 44z 65C
Net property, plant & equipme $14,44¢ $13,91¢

13. Subsequent Event

On January 6, 2012, the Company sold certain ags@is net book value of $900,000 which comprigedemiconductor mainframe
technology for $3.0 million in cash to Brooks Autation Inc. (“Brooks”).
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14. Selected Quarterly Consolidated Financial Da (Unaudited)

Net sales

Gross profit

Net loss

Basic loss per sha
Diluted loss per shal

Net sales

Gross profit

Net income

Basic income per sha
Diluted income per shai
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Three Months Ended

April 2, July 2, Oct. 1, Dec. 31,
2011 2011 2011 2011
(in thousands, except per share data)
$17,42: $27,58¢ $19,32: $18,64¢

6,38( 10,135 7,51¢ 6,39¢

(7,03)) (2,619 (6,116) (6,209)

$ (0.31) $ (0.12) $ (0.27) $ (0.27)

$ (0.31) $ (0.12) $ (0.27) $ (0.27)

Three Months Ended

April 3, July 3, Oct. 2, Dec. 31,

2010 2010 2010 2010
(in thousands, except per share data)

$33,14: $68,59¢ $64,62" $36,15¢

14,47¢ 29,03 29,58¢ 14,57¢

1,43( 12,33 13,17¢ 1,102

$ 0.0¢ $ 0.5t $ 0.5¢ $ 0.0¢

$ 0.0¢ $ 0.54 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.0t



Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants orcéenting and Financial Disclosure
None.

ltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
Management’s Report on Assessment of Internal Contils Over Financial Reporting
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Based on Intevac’'s management’s evaluation (withpdrticipation of Intevac’s chief executive offi@nd chief financial officer), as of
the end of the period covered by this report, latéy chief executive officer and chief financiafioér have concluded that Intevac’s
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineduiedRl3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securitiebdhge Act of 1934, as amended, (the
“Exchange Act”)) are effective to ensure that imfation required to be disclosed by Intevac in reptirat Intevac files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedeguatted within the time periods specified in Séms and Exchange Commission ru
and forms and is accumulated and communicated¢odn’s management, including Intevac’s chief ekigewfficer and chief financial
officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisioagarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finarad Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financiglaing for Intevac. Internal cont
over financial reporting is a process designedtwide reasonable assurance regarding the retiabilifinancial reporting and the preparat
of financial statements for external purposes toetance with generally accepted accounting priesignternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras (i) pertain to the maintenance of records ithatasonable detail accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of tteetesof the Company; (ii) provide reasonable asseréhat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statesin accordance with generally accepted acaumgiptinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made ordgdordance with authorizations of management aedtdrs of the Company; and
(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prwer timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on ttaniiial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal coht@iver financial reporting may not prevent or detisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

Management (with the participation of the chief@x@ve officer and chief financial officer) condedtan evaluation of the effectiven:
of Intevac’s internal control over financial repgog based on the framework limternal Control — Integrated Framewoidsued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission. Based on this evaluation, manageowemiuded that Intevag'interna
control over financial reporting was effective dDecember 31, 2011. Grant Thornton LLP, an indeetregistered public accounting fii
has audited the effectiveness of Intevac’s intecoatrol over financial reporting and has issugdport on Intevac’s internal control over
financial reporting, which is included in their mpon the following page.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in our internal control oveairfcial reporting during our fourth quarter of &s2011 that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, Ingeis internal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Intevac, Inc.

We have audited Intevac, Inc. (a Delaware corpamqtand subsidiaries’ (collectively, the “Companiridernal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on aitsiablished itnternal Control — Integrated Framwork issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis€ZdSO). The Company’s management is responsible&intaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and ftg assessment of the effectiveness of internatalooter financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management’s Report on Assessmenteariial Controls Over Financial Reporting. Our cespbility is to express an opinion
on the Company’s internal control over financiglading based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg&feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircéal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jge reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companysats that could have a material effect on thenfiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Intevac, Inc. and subsidiaries rtaiired, in all material respects, effective intécantrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on criteria establishbdemal Control — Integrated Framewoidsued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Company asadger 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consadicdatements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income )J@s®d cash flows for each of the three yearsérpiriod ended December 31, 2011. Our
audits of the basic financial statements includhedfinancial statement schedule listed in the irglgpearing under Item 15(a)(2). Our report
dated February 21, 2012 expressed an unqualifigdoopon those consolidated financial statementssaedule.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California
February 21, 2012
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART 1lI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govere

The information required by this item relating e tCompany’s directors and nominees, disclosuatimgl to compliance with
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of41@®d information regarding Intevac’s code of ehaudit committee and stockholder
recommendations for director nominees is includeden the captions “Election of Directors,” “Nomirsge“Business Experience of
Nominees for Election as Directc” “Board Meetings and Committees,” “Corporate Gaarce Matters,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance ” and “Code of BassConduct and Ethics” in the Company’s Proxyestant for the 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated hebgimeference. The information required by this iteftating to the Company’s executive
officers and key employees is included under thptica “Executive Officers of the Registranihider Item 1 in Part | of this Annual Report
Form 10-K.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is includetter the caption “Executive Compensation and Relattormation” in the
Company'’s Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meptif Stockholders and is incorporated herein figreace.

ltem 12.  Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managenmend Related Stockholder Matte
Security

Securities authorized for issuance under equitypameation plans. The following table summarizes the number détanding
options granted to employees and directors, asasethe number of securities remaining availablduture issuance, under Intevac’s equity
compensation plans at December 31, 2011.

. @ (b) ()
Number of securities
Number of
securities
to be issued upon Weighted-average remaining available
exercise of exercise price of
outstanding options, outstanding options for future issuance
under equity
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights compensation plan

(@)
Equity compensation plans approved by sec
holders(2) 3,391,92! $ 12.0¢ 999,85¢
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holder: — — —
Total 3,391,92! $ 12.0¢ 999,85¢

(1) Excludes securities reflected in column
(2) Included in the column (c) amount are 301,592 shavailable for future issuance under Int¢s 2003 Employee Stock Purchase P

The other information required by this item is irsdkd under the caption “Ownership of Securitiesthim Company’s Proxy Statement
for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders ansh@érporated herein by reference.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, adatector Independence

The information required by this item is includetter the captions “Certain Transactions” and “Coae Governance Matters” in the
Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Megtif Stockholders and is incorporated herein ligremce.
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is includeter the caption “Fees Paid To Accountants ForiSes\Rendered During 2011” in
the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annuegtihg of Stockholders and is incorporated hergireference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
a) The following documents are filed as parthis Annual Report on Form 10-K:
1. Financial Statements:
See “Index to Consolidated Financial Statement$?art II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.
2. Financial Statement Schedule:
Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules have been omitted since theired| information is not present in amounts suffitito require submission of the
schedule or because the information required isidtsd in the consolidated financial statementsabesithereto.

3. Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description
3.1(2) Certificate of Incorporation of the Registr:
3.2(2) Bylaws of the Registrant, as amen
10.1 +(3) The Registrars 1995 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan, as ame
10.2 +(4) The Registrars 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amg
10.3 +(5) The Registrars 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, as amen
10.4(6) Lease, dated February 5, 2001 regarding the spaagel at 3510, 3544, 3560, 3570 and 3580 Badse#tSSanta Clara,
California, including the First through Seventh Amdenents
10.6 +(3) The Registrars 401(k) Profit Sharing Ple
10.9(7) Director and Officer Indemnification Agreeme
10.11+(8 The Registrars Executive Incentive Ple
10.12+(8 Employment Agreement of Kevin Fairbairn dated Jayp@4, 2002, as amend
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registre
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
24.1 Power of Attorney (see page i
31.1 Certification of President and Chief Executive ©éfi Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z
31.2 Certification of Vice-President, Finance and Adreiration, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer andi®@&ary Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certifications Pursuant to U.S.C. 1350, adoptedtamt to Section 906 of the SarbeOxley Act of 200z
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documel
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutrie
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhé&tr
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documel
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doentri

(1) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report on Form-K filed July 23, 200
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(2) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report on Form-K filed November 19, 200

(3) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrat®tatement on Form-1 (No. 3:-97806)

(4) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Form 1-Q filed May 3, 2011

(5) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Form 1-Q filed May 3, 2011

(6) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Form 1K filed February 25, 201

(7) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Form 1+-K filed March 14, 200¢

(8) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Form 1-K filed March 4, 200¢

+ Management compensatory plan or arrangement rebariee filed as an exhibit pursuant to Iltem 18fdform 1(-K

*  Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, theserarctive data files are deemed not filed or phé @egistration statement or prospectus
for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securhigtsof 1933 or Section 18 of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934 and otherwise are not
subject to liability under those sectiol
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, théoedmly authorized, on February 21, 2012.

INTEVAC, INC.

/s/ JEFFREY ANDRESOI

Jeffrey Andresol

Executive Vice President, Finance and Administratio
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below constitutes anairagppgKevin
Fairbairn and Jeffrey Andreson and each of therhjsague and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agewith full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him and in his name, place stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any drehgendments (including post-effective
amendments) to this Report on Form 10-K, and &otfie same, with all exhibits thereto, and oth@udwents in connection therewith, with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and eacheshf full power and authority to do and
perform each and every act and thing requisitersaogssary to be done in connection therewith, Ipstéuall intents and purposes as he m
or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirgnall that said attorneys-in-fact and agentsror of them, or their or his substitute or
substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be dongitive hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title. Date
/s/ KEVIN FAIRBAIRN President, Chief Executive Officer and February 21, 2012
(Kevin Fairbairn) Director (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/  NORMAN H. POND Chairman of the Board February 21, 2012
(Norman H. Pond
/'s/ JEEEREY ANDRESO! Exe(_:u_tive \_/ice Pre_zside_nt, Fi_nance_ and February 21, 2012
Administration, Chief Financial Officer
(Jeffrey Andreson)

Treasurer and Secretary (Principal
Financial and Accounting Office

/s/ DAVID S. DURY Director February 21, 2012
(David S. Dury)
/s/ STANLEY J. HILL Director February 21, 2012
(Stanley J. Hill)
/s/ THOMAS M. ROHRS Director February 21, 2012
(Thomas M. Rohrs
/s/ JOHN F. SCHAEFEI Director February 21, 2012
(John F. Schaefe
/s/ PING YANG Director February 21, 2012
(Ping Yang)
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SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

INTEVAC, INC.
Additions (Reductions)
Balance a Charged Charged
(Credited) (Credited) Balance a
Beginning to Costs anc
to Other End
Description of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions -Describe of Period

(In thousands)
Year ended December 31, 20!
Deducted from asset accour
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 14t $ 132 $ — $ 145(1) $ 13¢
Year ended December 31, 20.
Deducted from asset accour
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 13¢ $ — $ — $ 78(1) $ 55
Year ended December 31, 20
Deducted from asset accour
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 55 $ 41 $ — $ 55(1) $ 41

(1) Write-offs of amounts deemed uncollectit
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
. Intevac Photonics, In
. Intevac Pacific Group Holdings Ltd. F— Singapore
. Lotus Technologies, In— Santa Clara, Californi
. IRPC, Inc.— Santa Clara, Californi
. Solar Implant Technologies, In— California
. Intevac Foreign Sales Corporati— Barbados
. Intevac Asia Private Limite— Singapore
. Intevac Malaysia Sdn BF— Malaysia

© 00 N O 0B~ WN PP

. Intevac Limited— Hong Kong
10. Inteva(Shenzhen) Co. Lt— China
11. IVACCo. Ltd.— Korea

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated February 21, 2@ff2respect to the consolidated financial statetsieschedule, and internal control
over financial reporting included in the Annual Regof Intevac, Inc. and subsidiaries on Form 1®&Kthe year ended December 31,
2011. We hereby consent to the incorporation bgresfce of said reports in the Registration Statésnafrintevac, Inc. and subsidiaries on
Forms S-8 (File No. 333- 175979, effective Augus2@11; File No. 333-168505, effective August 31@0File No. 333-160596, effective
July 15, 2009; File No. 333-152773, effective Aughis2008; File No. 333-143418, effective May 3Q02; File No. 333-134422, effective
May 24, 2006; File No. 333-125523, effective Jun2@5; File No. 333-109260, effective September22®3; File No. 333-106960,
effective July 11, 2003; File No. 333-50166, effeetNovember 17, 2000; and File No. 333-65421,atiffe October 7, 1998).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California
February 21, 2012



Exhibit 31.1

Certifications

I, Kevin Fairbairn, certify that:
| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Intevac, Inc..

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or donéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anafre responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

1.
2.

5.

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

Designed such internal controls over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control oveatditial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttusi report Intevac’s
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discisantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluati

Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgnt’s internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evaituat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent

functions):

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal césmtreer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a si@gmifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 21, 2012

/s/ KEVIN FAIRBAIRN
Kevin Fairbairn
President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc




Exhibit 31.2

Certifications

I, Jeffrey Andreson, certify that:
| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Intevac, Inc..

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or donéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anafre responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

1.
2.

5.

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

Designed such internal controls over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control oveatditial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contiots procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluatior

Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgnt’s internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evaituat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent

functions):

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal césmtreer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a si@gmifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 21, 2012

/ s/ JEFFREY ANDRESOV

Jeffrey Andresol

Executive Vice President, Finance and Administral
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF  FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kevin Fairbairn, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SS$ection 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@&darbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that the Annual Report of Intevac, Inc. on FormKL@r the period ended December 31, 2011 fully cespwith the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934 and that information contained in suohnfr 10-K fairly presents in all material
respects the financial condition and results ofraens of Intevac, Inc.

Date: February 21, 2012

/s/ KEVIN FAIRBAIRN
Kevin Fairbairn
President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

I, Jeffrey Andreson, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SS@ction 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section B Garbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that the Annual Report of Intevac, Inc. on FormKL@r the period ended December 31, 2011 fully chespwith the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934 and that information contained in suohnfr 10-K fairly presents in all material
respects the financial condition and results ofragens of Intevac, Inc.

Date: February 21, 2012

/s/ JEFFREY ANDRESO!

Jeffrey Andresol

Executive Vice President, Finance and Administral
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to Intevac,dnd.will be retained by Intevac, Ir
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosioni®r its staff upon reque:



